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SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  

 

 

The following discussion and analysis of the Sacramento Municipal Utility District and 

its component units (District) financial performance provides an overview of the 

District’s financial activities for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.  This 

discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the District’s financial 

statements and accompanying notes, which follow this section. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The District was formed by a vote of the electors in 1923, under provisions of the 

State of California Municipal Utility District Act, and began electric operations in 

1947.  The District is governed by an elected Board of Directors and has the rights 

and powers to fix rates and charges for commodities or services furnished, to incur 

indebtedness and issue bonds or other obligations, and, under certain circumstances, 

to levy and collect ad valorem property taxes.  The District is responsible for the 

acquisition, generation, transmission, and distribution of electric power to its service 

area, which includes most of Sacramento County and a small adjoining portion of 

Placer County. 

 

Setting of Rates 

The District’s Board of Directors (Board) has autonomous authority to establish the 

rates charged for all District services.  Changes in such rates require formal action, 

after public hearing, by the Board. 

 

On May 3, 2001, in response to market disruptions and the high costs of purchased 

power and natural gas (energy crisis) the Board unanimously approved the District’s 

first rate increase in more than ten years.  The rate action included a 16 percent 

average rate increase along with two temporary surcharges of three percent each, 

one to cover reduced hydroelectric production, resulting in increased power costs in 

2001 and one intended to replenish the Rate Stabilization Fund.  The first surcharge 

expired May 2, 2002 and the other expired May 2, 2004.  The District is currently in 

the midst of a rate proceeding that will be completed early in 2005.  The General 

Manager is recommending a rate increase that will result in an average system rate 

increase of approximately six percent and would be effective in rates beginning April 

1, 2005. 
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Financial Reporting 

The District’s accounting records are maintained in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles for proprietary funds as prescribed by the 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and, where not in conflict with 

GASB pronouncements, accounting principles prescribed by the Financial Accounting 

Standards Board (FASB).  The District’s accounting records generally follow the 

Uniform System of Accounts for Public Licensees prescribed by the Federal Energy 

Regulatory Commission (FERC), except as it relates to the accounting for 

contributions of utility property in aid of construction. 

 

In 2004, the District identified five power purchase agreements, in effect at 

December 31, 2003, that are derivative financial instruments which were improperly 

identified as a normal purchases and, as such, were not included at fair value in the 

December 31, 2003 consolidated balance sheet, as required by FAS 133 “Accounting 

for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.  In addition, the District was 

netting the fair value of contracts by commodity group and presenting the fair values 

net on the consolidated balance sheet when the right of set off did not exist as 

defined in FIN 39 “Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts”.  The 

restatement of the December 31, 2003 consolidated balance sheet corrects the 

treatment of these contracts to reflect them as derivative financial instruments at 

that are recorded at their fair values and presents the fair values of derivative assets 

and liabilities gross on the balance sheet when it is appropriate to do so.  The 

adjustment for these corrections resulted in an increase of, which totaled $35.7 

million for derivative instrument assets and $170.5 million for derivative financial 

instrument liabilities at December 31, 2003.  The District’s Board defers the 

recognition of derivative financial instruments for rate-making purposes, and 

accordingly, regulatory assets and regulatory credits were restated by $87.5 and 

$47.3 million, respectively, at December 31, 2003.  The restatement does not impact 

the 2003 statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. 

 

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting for 

the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation”, the Board has taken various regulatory 

actions for ratemaking purposes that result in the deferral of expense or revenue 

recognition.  As of December 31, 2004, the District had total regulatory costs for 

future recovery of $498 million, which is a net increase of $26 million from 2003.  

The increase is due primarily to the change in value of derivative financial 

instruments, an increase in the deferred decommissioning liability and the deferral of 

costs associated with the recognition of a liability to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
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(Bureau), partially offset by collection in rates of the deferred nuclear plant costs and 

reductions in deferred costs associated with wholesale receivables tentatively settled 

in 2004.  The District also had regulatory credits of $382 million as of December 31, 

2004, which is a net increase of $49 million over 2003.  The increase is primarily due 

to the deferral of gains from contribution in aid of construction, the change in value 

of derivative financial instruments, and a settlement with El Paso Natural Gas, 

partially offset by the recognition of revenue from the Rate Stabilization Fund.  The 

regulatory costs and regulatory credits will be recognized in the consolidated 

statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets in future periods as 

determined by the Board for ratemaking purposes. 

 

For the last several years, the Board had a strategic directive to build up the Rate 

Stabilization Fund as a reserve against the need for future rate increases.  As a 

result, the District would defer any net income or recoup any net loss through the 

use of the Rate Stabilization Fund as part of its rate policy.  In 2004, the Board 

ceased this practice in connection with adoption of a strategic directive to increase 

customer equity to a targeted level of 20 percent by 2007.     

 

 
Using This Financial Report 

This financial annual report consists of management’s discussion and analysis and 

the consolidated financial statements, including notes to the consolidated financial 

statements.  The financial annual report reflects the activities of the District primarily 

funded through the sale of energy, transmission, and distribution services to its 

customer-owners. 

 

Consolidated Balance Sheets, Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net 

Assets, and Statements of Cash Flows 

The consolidated financial statements provide both short-term and long-term 

information about the District’s financial status.  The consolidated Balance Sheets 

include all of the District’s assets and liabilities, using the accrual method of 

accounting, as well as an indication about which assets can be utilized for general 

purposes, and which assets are restricted as a result of bond covenants, Board 

action and other commitments.  The consolidated Balance Sheets provide 

information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations at a specific 

point in time.  The consolidated Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 

Net Assets report all of the District’s revenues and expenses during the periods 

indicated.  The consolidated Statements of Cash Flows report the cash provided and 
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used by operating activities, as well as other cash sources such as investment 

income and debt financing, and other cash uses such as payments for bond principal 

and capital additions and betterments. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Summary of Consolidated Financial Position and Change in Net Assets 

    (millions) 

   December 31, 
  Assets   2004   2003   2002     
    As Restated 
 

 Electric Utility Plant – net..............................  $ 2,494   $ 2,239 $ 1,919 
 Restricted and Designated Assets...................   238  271  228 
 Current Assets............................................   642  750  762 
 Noncurrent Assets and Deferred Charges.........   527  501  417 
   $ 3,901 $ 3,761 $ 3,326 

 
  Liabilities and Net Assets 
 

 Long-Term Debt - net ..................................  $ 2,407 $ 2,359 $ 2,058 
 Current Liabilities and Deferred Credits ...........   473  488  513 
 Noncurrent Liabilities and Deferred Credits ......   719  696  535 
 Net Assets .................................................   302  218  220  
    $ 3,901 $ 3,761 $ 3,326 

 
 
ASSETS 
 
Utility Plant – net 

2004 Compared to 2003  

The District has invested approximately $2.5 billion in utility plant assets and 

construction work in progress net of accumulated depreciation at December 31, 

2004.  Net utility plant makes up about 64 percent of the District’s assets, 

approximately 4 percent greater than the previous year.  During 2004, the District 

capitalized approximately $528 million of additions to utility plant, including additions 

to construction work in progress in the District’s consolidated financial statements.  

The primary increase was due to the 2004 costs of approximately $161 million for 

the 500 MW, gas-fired Cosumnes Power Plant project (Project).  The Project is 

currently planned to cost approximately $390 million and to be completed by April 

2006. 

 

The District has been negotiating with the Project’s general contractor, Fru-Con 

Construction Corporation, to resolve disputes over cost and delays.  Unable to 

resolve the disputes to the satisfaction of the District, the contract was terminated 

on February 11, 2005.  See Note 17 for additional details.   
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2003 Compared to 2002  

The District has invested approximately $2.2 billion in utility plant assets and 

construction work in progress net of accumulated depreciation at December 31, 

2003.  Net utility plant makes up about 60 percent of the District’s assets, 

approximately 2 percent greater than the previous year.  During 2003, the District 

capitalized approximately $371 million of additions to utility plant, including additions 

to construction work in progress in the District’s consolidated financial statements.  

The primary increase was due to the purchase of the Rosa gas field natural gas 

reserves for $136 million, which is included in Other in the chart below.  A second 

major increase was in generation plant, which includes the 2003 additional costs of 

approximately $118 million for the 500 MW, gas-fired Cosumnes Power Plant project 

(Project).     

 

The following charts show the breakdown of net utility plant by major plant category 

– Generation (Gen), Transmission (Trans), Distribution (Distr), and Other: 
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Restricted Assets 

2004 Compared to 2003  

The District’s level of restricted assets (noncurrent) decreased by $36 million during 

2004 reflecting a reduction of Revenue bond, debt service, and construction 

reserves, a reduction in the Rate Stabilization Fund, and a lower decommissioning 
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trust fund balance as the District continues to decommission the Rancho Seco 

nuclear power plant. 

 

2003  Compared to 2002  

The District’s level of restricted assets (noncurrent) increased by $43 million during 

2003 reflecting a $56 million deposit into the Rate Stabilization Fund, higher 

decommissioning trust fund balance as the District continues to fund the 

decommissioning of the Rancho Seco nuclear power plant through rates, and higher 

securities lending, partially offset by a higher current portion of restricted assets. 

 

Current Assets 

2004 Compared to 2003 (As Restated)  

Current assets decreased by $108 million in 2004 as a result of a lower level of 

unrestricted cash and investments reflecting significant expenditures for 

construction, a lower level of regulatory costs to be recovered in one year, reflecting 

the completion of recovering certain regulatory charges through rates, and a lower 

level of prepayments.  These decreases were partially offset by higher receivables for 

wholesale energy sales. 

 

2003 (As Restated) Compared to 2002  

Current assets decreased by $12 million in 2003 as a result of a lower level of 

unrestricted cash and investments and a lower level of regulatory costs to be 

recovered in one year, reflecting the completion of recovering certain regulatory 

charges through rates.  These decreases were partially offset by a higher current 

portion of restricted assets, higher receivables for wholesale and customer energy 

sales, and higher prepayments due to a credit from the energy contract with Western 

Area Power Administration. 

 

Noncurrent Assets and Deferred Charges 

2004 Compared to 2003 (As Restated) 

Total noncurrent assets and deferred charges increased by $26 million.  This increase 

reflects an increase in the amount of regulatory assets to be recovered in future 

periods as a result of a proposed settlement with the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 

(Bureau), changes in the valuation of derivative financial instruments, which are 

deferred for rate-making purposes, and an increase in other noncurrent assets due 

to a credit from a settlement with El Paso Natural Gas. 
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2003 (As Restated) Compared to 2002  

Total noncurrent assets and deferred charges increased by $84 million.  This increase 

reflects changes in the valuation of derivative financial instruments, which are 

deferred for rate-making purposes, and higher unamortized debt issuance costs.  

The increases were partially offset by a reduction in the amount of regulatory assets 

to be recovered in future periods and the completion of recovering certain stranded 

costs in 2003.  The long-term amount of conservation loans is also lower reflecting 

the continued normal collections and a low amount of new lending activity.   

 

LIABILITIES 

 

Long-Term Debt 

2004 Compared to 2003  

The District completed one debt issuance for a total of $131 million, which was used 

to refund $101 million of Commercial Paper Notes and $17 million of previously 

issued revenue bonds through legal defeasance.  During 2004, the District called 

approximately $4 million of Central Valley Financing Authority (CVFA) bonds, a 

component unit of the District, reducing future debt service.  In January 2005, the 

District called an additional $4 million of CVFA bonds. 

 

2003 Compared to 2002  

Long-term debt increased by over $300 million in 2003.  The District completed four 

debt issuances for a total of $924 million.  The 2003 Series R Electric Revenue Bonds 

were issued for $481 million and were used to refund $115 million of Commercial 

Paper Notes and $134 million of previously issued revenue bonds through legal 

defeasance.  The 2003 Series S Electric Revenue Refunding Bonds were issued for 

$331 million and were used to refund $360 million of previously issued revenue 

bonds through a legal defeasance.  The 2003 Subordinated Electric Revenue Bonds 

(2003 Series H and 2003 Series I) were issued for $112 million and were used to 

refund $106 million of previously issued revenue bonds.   
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The following table shows the District’s future debt service requirements through 

2009 as of December 31, 2004:  
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As of December 31, 2004, the District had an underlying rating of “A” from both 

Standard & Poor’s and Fitch, and a higher rating of “A1” from Moody’s.  Most of the 

District’s bonds are insured and are therefore rated “AAA” by the rating agencies. 

 

Current Liabilities and Deferred Credits 

2004 Compared to 2003 (As Restated)  

Current liabilities and deferred credits decreased by approximately $15 million during 

2004.  As described in Long-Term Debt above, the District refunded $101 million of 

commercial paper notes through long-term senior debt after issuing $50 million 

during 2004.  Additionally, accounts payable and accrued interest both decreased in 

2004.  The decreases were partially offset by an increase in the current portion of 

long-term debt, purchased power payable, and customer deposits and other.  In 

January 2005, the District issued $50 million of commercial paper. 

 

2003 (As Restated) Compared to 2002  

Current liabilities and deferred credits decreased by approximately $25 million during 

2003.  As described in Long-Term Debt above, the District refunded $115 million of 

commercial paper notes through long-term senior debt.  The current portion of long-

term debt also decreased by $6 million.  The decreases were partially offset by 

increases in accounts payable, accrued decommissioning, accrued interest, and 

higher securities lending. 
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Noncurrent Liabilities and Deferred Credits 

2004 Compared to 2003 (As Restated)  

Noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits have increased by $23 million as a result of 

the increase in valuation of derivative financial instruments, which are deferred for 

rate-making purposes, an increase in regulatory credits and the recognition of a 

liability to the Bureau related to the tentative settleme nt of a billing dispute. 

 

2003 (As Restated) Compared to 2002  

Noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits have increased by $161 million as a result 

of the increase in the rate stabilization fund of $56 million and increases in other 

regulatory credits, and changes in the valuation of derivative financial instruments, 

which are deferred for rate-making purposes.  The increases were partially offset by 

reductions in the accrued decommissioning and changes in the valuation of 

derivative financial instruments. 

 
Summary of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets  
  (millions) 
 
 
   December 31, 

  2004 2003 2002 
 

 Operating revenues .....................................  $ 1,069  $ 1,033 $ 1,012 
 Operating expenses .....................................   (901)  (943)  (930) 
 Operating income ........................................   168  90  82 

 
 Interest and other income .............................   25  30  40  
 Interest charges..........................................   (109)  (120)  (122) 
 Increase in net assets..................................  $ 84 $ -0- $ -0- 

 
 

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 

Operating Revenues 

2004 Compared to 2003 

Operating revenues were $1,069 million in 2004, an increase from 2003 of $36 

million after transferring approximately $12 million from the Rate Stabilization Fund 

in 2004 versus a $56 million transfer to the Rate Stabilization Fund in 2003.  Sales to 

customers were $962 million in 2004, an increase of $9 million over 2003 sales.  The 

District sold 3.2 percent more energy to its retail customers, which grew from 

553,337 customers in 2003 to 567,176 customers in 2004, at average revenue per 

kilowatt hours that decreased by 2.1 percent, reflecting the end of a temporary rate 

surcharge in May 2004.  
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Wholesale revenues are comprised of both surplus energy and gas sales.  In 2004, 

surplus gas sales were $62 million as compared to $65 million in 2003.  The 

decrease was due to a lower amount sold (9 percent) although at higher average 

prices (4 percent) as compared to 2003.  Surplus energy sales in 2004 were $39 

million lower than in 2003.  The decrease is due to lower volume (45 percent) and 

lower average prices (31 percent) than in 2003.   

 

2003 Compared to 2002 

Operating revenues were $1,033 million in 2003, an increase from 2002 of $21 

million even after transferring approximately $56 million to the Rate Stabilization 

Fund versus a $2 million transfer in 2002.  Sales to customers were $953 million in 

2003, an increase of $39 million over 2002 sales.  The District sold 4.3 percent more 

energy to its retail customers, which grew from 541,296 customers in 2002 to 

553,337 customers in 2003, at average rates that remained the same as the 

previous year.  Although average rates for the year remained stable, the three 

percent hydro surcharge was removed from rates in May 2003.  

 

Wholesale revenues are comprised of both surplus energy and gas sales.  In 2003, 

surplus gas sales exceeded surplus energy sales for the first time as a result of the 

investment in the Rosa gas field.  The District had over $65 million of surplus gas 

sales in 2003 as compared to $29 million in 2002.  The increase was due to both 

higher amounts sold (27 percent) and higher average prices (75 percent) as 

compared to 2002.  Surplus energy sales in 2003 were $4 million lower than in 2002.  

The decrease is due to lower volume (28 percent) partially offset by higher average 

prices than in 2002.   
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The following charts show the percentage of megawatt hour (MWh) sales and sales 

revenue in 2004, 2003 and 2002 by surplus energy sales (surplus), commercial and 

industrial (C&I), and residential (Res) customers: 
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Operating Expenses 

2004 Compared to 2003  

Operating expenses were $901 million in 2004 as compared to $943 million in 2003.  

The District spent $15 million less for purchased power in 2004 than in 2003.  

Approximately 2.4 percent less energy was purchased in 2004 at average prices that 

were 1.4 percent lower than in 2003.  In 2004, fuel costs, a component of production 

costs, were approximately $88 million, or $12 million higher than 2003.  More fuel 

was used in 2004 (974 thousand decatherms) at average prices that were 10 percent 

higher than in 2003. 

 

The District also had lower expenses for administrative and general due to lower 

property insurance premiums, lower A&G salaries, and  lower expenditures for public 

good activities for research and development of photovoltaic generation and 

distributed technology. 

 

Maintenance increased due to repairs at hydro facilities and preventative 

maintenance projects.  Depreciation expense increased due to additions to plant in 

service, primarily for distribution plant. 
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Regulatory deferrals collected in rates significantly decreased due to the complete 

recovery through rates for deferred nuclear plant costs and other regulatory assets 

during 2003. 

 

In 2004, power supply costs made up approximately 63 percent of total operating 

expenses as compared to 61 percent for 2003. 

 

2003 Compared to 2002  

Operating expenses were $943 million in 2003 as compared to $930 million in 2002.  

The District spent $25 million more for purchased power in 2003 than in 2002.  

Approximately two percent less energy was purchased in 2003 at average prices that 

were nine percent higher than in 2002.  In 2003, fuel costs, a component of 

production costs, were approximately $93 million in 2003, or $56 million lower than 

2002.  Less fuel was used in 2003 (1.4 million decatherms) at average prices that 

were 33 percent lower than in 2002. 

 

The District also had higher expenses for administrative and general due to higher 

property insurance, Service Delivery Information Technology project data conversion 

costs and renewable technology expenses not included in public good expense.  

Maintenance and depreciation expenses were also higher, all of which were partially 

offset by lower expenses for public good and decommissioning. 

 

In both 2003 and 2002, power supply costs made up approximately 61 percent and 

62 percent of total operating expenses, respectively. 

 

The following charts compare the relative cost of purchased power, production 

expenses, and depletion of the Rosa gas field (power supply costs) to all other 

operating expenses in 2004, 2003 and 2002: 
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Interest and Other Income 

2004 Compared to 2003 

Interest and other income was lower by $5 million in 2004 as compared to 2003.  

Interest income was lower due to lower cash balances and lower interest rates in 

2004 as compared to 2003.  Other income was lower in 2004 primarily as a result of 

lower unrealized holding gains on investments. 

 

2003 Compared to 2002  

Interest and other income was lower by $10 million in 2003 as compared to 2002.  

This was primarily a result of lower interest rates in 2003 as compared to 2002. 

 

 

Interest Charges 

2004 Compared to 2003  

Interest charges in 2004 were $11 million lower than in 2003, which is due primarily 

to higher allowance for funds used during construction as a result of the progress on 

the Cosumnes Power Plant project and due to lower amortization of debt issuance 

costs and discounts. 

  

2003 Compared to 2002  

Interest charges in 2003 were $2 million lower than in 2002, which is due primarily 

to higher allowance for funds used during construction as a result of the progress on 

the Cosumnes Power Plant project. 

 

 

 



SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,

2004 2003
(As Restated)

(thousands of dollars)
ASSETS

ELECTRIC UTILITY PLANT
Plant in service 2,945,909$    2,806,386$    
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion (1,065,631)    (992,803)       

Plant in service - net 1,880,278      1,813,583      
Construction work in progress 613,507        425,490        

Total electric utility plant - net 2,493,785      2,239,073      

RESTRICTED AND DESIGNATED ASSETS
Revenue bond, debt service 

and construction reserves 179,793        203,253        
Nuclear decommissioning trust fund 87,968          91,346          
Rate stabilization fund 75,000          87,317          
Securities lending collateral 66,427          65,486          
Other funds 6,072            3,625            
Less current portion (177,168)       (180,258)       

Total restricted and designated assets 238,092        270,769        

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash, cash equivalents and investments

Unrestricted 123,322        226,965        
Restricted and designated 177,168        180,258        

Receivables - net:
Retail customers 123,722        125,616        
Wholesale 50,475          42,844          
Conservation loans due within one year, 

accrued interest and other 16,508          19,776          
Regulatory costs to be recovered within one year 72,836          76,790          
Derivative financial instruments maturing within one year 32,309          24,731          
Materials and supplies 33,631          29,848          
Prepayments 11,837          23,302          

Total current assets 641,808        750,130        

NONCURRENT ASSETS AND DEFERRED CHARGES
Regulatory costs for future recovery 289,373        301,310        
Derivative financial instruments 150,971        120,998        
Unamortized debt issuance costs 30,323          31,066          
Conservation loans 33,730          31,276          
Preliminary project studies and other 22,857          16,118          

Total noncurrent assets and deferred charges 527,254        500,768        

TOTAL ASSETS 3,900,939$    3,760,740$    



SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,

2004 2003
(As Restated)

(thousands of dollars)
LIABILITIES

LONG-TERM DEBT - net 2,406,325$   2,358,710$   

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS
Commercial paper notes -0- 51,000         
Accounts payable 74,285         84,066         
Purchased power payable 76,610         72,850         
Long-term debt due within one year 67,165         44,245         
Accrued decommissioning 41,500         39,081         
Accrued interest 39,141         44,576         
Accrued salaries and compensated absences 25,178         27,184         
Derivative financial instruments maturing within one year 48,317         30,304         
Regulatory credits to be recognized within one year 7,495           5,044           
Securities lending collateral 66,427         65,486         
Customer deposits and other 27,355         23,749         

Total current liabilities and deferred credits 473,473        487,585        

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS
Accrued decommissioning 283,758        283,866        
Derivative financial instruments 155,523        147,722        
Regulatory credits  238,497        233,763        
Due to affiliated entity 14,863         16,960         
Due to U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 12,485         -0-
Self insurance, deferred credits and other 13,699         13,679         

Total noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits 718,825        695,990        

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,598,623     3,542,285     

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 152,809        (72,985)        
Restricted 44,068         50,871         
Unrestricted 105,439        240,569        

TOTAL NET ASSETS 302,316        218,455        

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 17 and 18)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 3,900,939$   3,760,740$   



SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003

(thousands of dollars)

OPERATING REVENUES
Residential 442,704$         444,713$         
Commercial and industrial 514,670           503,668           
Street lighting and other 13,158             12,894            
Wholesale 85,878             127,661           
Rate stabilization fund transfers 12,317             (56,069)           

Total operating revenues 1,068,727        1,032,867        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Operations:

Purchased power 373,362           387,985           
Production 189,502           178,745           
Transmission and distribution 32,553             32,965            

Administrative, general and customer 93,609             97,998            
Public good 22,933             25,421            
Maintenance 54,834             46,353            
Depreciation 98,614             92,578            
Depletion 5,265              4,941              
Decommissioning 29,166             29,708            
Regulatory deferrals collected in rates 1,140              46,303            

Total operating expenses 900,978           942,997           

OPERATING INCOME 167,749           89,870            

NONOPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Other revenues

Interest income 17,550             19,664            
Other income - net 7,422              10,164            

Total other revenues 24,972             29,828            

Interest charges
Interest on debt 124,230           127,326           
Allowance for funds used during construction (15,370)           (7,628)             

Total interest charges 108,860           119,698           

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS 83,861$            $              -0-

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 218,455$         219,652$         

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle -                  (1,197)             

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR AS ADJUSTED 218,455           218,455           

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS DURING THE YEAR 83,861             -0-

NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR 302,316$         218,455$         



SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003

(thousands of dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from retail customers 965,211$      949,397$       
Receipts from surplus power sales 32,942          66,548           
Receipts from surplus gas sales 61,874          60,640           
Receipts from federal and state grants 3,727            6,212             
Receipts from steam sales 7,931            7,369             
Issuance/repayment of conservation loans, net 2,102            15,989           
Payments to employees - payroll and other (176,518)       (159,199)        
Payments for wholesale power (354,050)       (390,867)        
Payments for gas purchases (149,712)       (143,213)        
Payments to vendors (63,005)         (81,969)         
Payments for decommissioning (32,249)         (26,320)         
Payments for Rosa gas imbalance -               (3,703)           
Other payments, net (6,047)           (4,190)           

Net cash provided by operating activities 292,206        296,694         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Sales and maturities of securities 164,596        251,152         
Purchases of securities (257,582)       (251,201)        
Interest and dividends received 13,937          15,019           
Securities lending collateral - net 954               35,256           

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (78,095)         50,226           

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Construction expenditures (348,414)       (380,657)        
Contributions in aid of construction 13,252          15,014           
Net proceeds from bond issues 131,188        993,595         
Repayment and defeasance of debt (65,627)         (715,189)        
Issuance/repayment of commercial paper - net (51,000)         (115,300)        
Interest on debt (124,038)       (107,745)        

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (444,639)       (310,282)        

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (230,528)       36,638           

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 551,926        515,288         

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 321,398$      551,926$       

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year consist of:
Unrestricted 123,322$      226,965$       
Restricted and designated - current portion 177,168        180,258         
Restricted and designated - noncurrent portion 20,908          144,703         

321,398$      551,926$       
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SACRAMENTO MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

NOTE 1.  ORGANIZATION  

 The Sacramento Municipal Utility District (District) was formed and operates under the State of 

California Municipal Utility District Act (Act).  The Act confers upon the District the rights and powers to 

fix rates and charges for commodities or services furnished, to incur indebtedness and issue bonds or 

other obligations and, under certain circumstances, to levy and collect ad valorem property taxes.  As 

a public utility, the District is not subject to regulation or oversight by the California Public Utilities 

Commission.  The District is responsible for the acquisition, generation, transmission, and distribution 

of electric power to its service area, which includes most of Sacramento County and a small adjoining 

portion of Placer County.  The Board of Directors (Board) determines the District’s rates.  The District 

is exempt from payment of federal and state income taxes and real and personal property taxes.  

 

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 Method of Accounting.  The District’s accounting records are maintained in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles for proprietary funds as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting 

Standards Board (GASB) and, where not in conflict with GASB pronouncements, accounting principles 

prescribed by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB).  The District’s accounting records 

generally follow the Uniform System of Accounts for Public Utilities and Licensees prescribed by the 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), except as it relates to the accounting for contributions 

of utility property in aid of construction (CIAC).  The District’s consolidated financial statements are 

reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  

Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless 

of the timing of the related cash flows. Electric revenues and costs that are directly related to 

generation, purchase, transmission, and distribution of electricity are reported as operating revenues 

and expenses.  All other revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating revenues and 

expenses. 

 Use of Estimates.  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent 

assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and 

expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 The Financial Reporting Entity. These consolidated financial statements include the District and its 

component units.  Although the component units are legally separate from the District, they are 

blended into and reported as part of the District because of the extent of their operational and financial 
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relationships with the District.  All significant inter-component transactions have been eliminated in 

consolidation. 

 Component Units.  The component units include the Central Valley Financing Authority (CVFA), the 

Sacramento Cogeneration Authority (SCA), and the Sacramento Power Authority (SPA).  The primary 

purpose of the component units is to own and operate electric utility plants that supply power to the 

District.  The District’s Board comprises the Commissions that govern these entities. 

 Plant in Service.  The cost of additions to Plant in Service and replacement property units is 

capitalized.  Repair and maintenance costs are charged to expense when incurred.  When the District 

retires portions of its Electric Utility Plant, retirements are recorded against Accumulated Depreciation 

and the retired portion of Electric Utility Plant is removed from Plant in Service.  The costs of removal 

and the related salvage value, if any, are charged or credited as appropriate to Accumulated 

Depreciation.  The District generally computes depreciation on Plant in Service on a straight-line, 

service-life basis.  The consolidated average annual composite depreciation rates for 2004 and 2003 

were 3.59 percent and 3.56 percent.  Depreciation is calculated using the following estimated lives: 

    Generation....................................................................... 5 to 74 years 

    Transmission and Distribution ............................................. 5 to 50 years 

    General........................................................................... 2 to 45 years 

 Investments in Joint Power Agency (JPA).  The District’s investment in the Transmission Agency of 

Northern California (TANC) is accounted for under the equity method of accounting and is reported as 

a component of Plant in Service.  The District’s share of the TANC debt service costs and operations 

and maintenance expense, inclusive of depreciation, are included in Transmission and Distribution 

expense in the consolidated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. 

 Investments in Gas Properties.  In March 2003, the District acquired an approximate 23 percent 

non-operating ownership interest in the Rosa Unit gas properties in New Mexico for $136.6 million.  

The District transports the gas extracted from the Rosa Unit for use in its natural gas fired 

cogeneration power plants (see Note 5).  The District uses the successful efforts method of accounting 

for its investment in gas producing properties.  Costs to acquire mineral interests in gas properties, to 

drill and equip exploratory wells that find proved reserves, and to drill and equip development wells 

are capitalized as a component of Plant in Service on the consolidated balance sheets.  Costs to drill 

exploratory wells that do not find proved reserves, geological and geophysical costs, and costs of 

carrying and retaining unproved properties are expensed.  Capitalized costs of producing gas 

properties, after considering estimated residual salvage values, are depleted by the unit-of–production 

method based on the estimated future production of the proved developed producing wells. 

 Restricted Assets.  Cash, cash equivalents and investments, which are restricted under terms of 

certain agreements for payments to third parties or Board actions limiting the use of such funds are 

included as restricted assets.   
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 Restricted Bond Funds.  The District’s Indenture Agreements and Bond Resolutions require the 

maintenance of minimum levels of reserves for debt service and certain construction costs intended by 

the related debt offerings. 

   Nuclear Decommissioning Trust Fund.  The District makes annual contributions to its Nuclear 

Decommissioning Trust Fund (Trust Fund) to cover the cost of its primary decommissioning activities 

associated with the Rancho Seco facility.  Primary decommissioning excludes activities associated with 

the spent fuel storage facility after 2008 and most non-radiological decommissioning tasks. The District 

annually evaluates its contribution rate to ensure the Trust Fund will fully fund primary 

decommissioning by the end of 2008, the same year in which active decommissioning is planned to be 

complete (see Note 13.)  The annual contribution rate is determined in advance of each year, during 

the budget process, based on calculation of the planned expenditure rate over the remaining number 

of years estimated to complete the primary decommissioning activities.  Changes in the estimate of 

the decommissioning liability serve to increase the contribution rate in future years (not in the year the 

estimate is updated, if changed).   

  Interest earnings on the Trust Fund assets are recorded as Interest Income and are accumulated in 

the Trust Fund.   Such interest is also included in Decommissioning Expense in the year earned.   

  Accrued Decommissioning.  Effective January 1, 2003, the District implemented Statement of 

Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO)”, 

which significantly changed the methodology for estimating the District’s decommissioning liability.  

The District accrues decommissioning costs related to Utility Plant when an obligation to decommission 

facilities is legally required.  Adjustments are made to such liabilities based on estimates by District 

staff in accordance with SFAS No. 143.  For active plants, such costs are included in the Utility Plant’s 

cost and included as a component of Depreciation expense over the Utility Plant’s life.  For Rancho 

Seco decommissioning changes there is no effect on net assets (see Note 13) because of the 

regulatory accounting applied to Rancho Seco decommissioning costs.  Expenditures for 

decommissioning activities are recorded as reductions to Accrued Decommissioning liability.  Changes 

in decommissioning liability estimates, arising from inflation, annual accretion and other changes to 

the cost assumptions are recorded directly to Accrued Decommissioning with a corresponding 

adjustment to the related regulatory deferral.  The current portion of the accrued decommissioning 

liability represents the District’s estimate of actual expenditures in the next year, generally as set forth 

in the annual budget.   

 At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the District’s Accrued Decommissioning balance in the consolidated 

balance sheets relating to Rancho Seco was $320.5 million and $316.6 million, respectively (See Note 

13). Other electricity generation and gas production facilities Accrued Decommissioning balance in the 

consolidated balance sheets totaled $4.8 million and $4.3 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, 

respectively.   



  
 

22

  Securities Lending Transactions.  The District lends its securities to broker-dealers and other entities 

for collateral with a simultaneous agreement to return the collateral for the same securities in the 

future.  District policy requires cash collateral of 102 percent of the market value of the loaned 

securities.  Both the investments purchased, with the collateral received, and the related liability to 

repay the collateral are included in the consolidated balance sheets. 

 Cash Equivalents.  Cash equivalents include all debt instruments purchased with an original maturity 

of three months or less and all investments in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and money 

market mutual funds.  The debt instruments and money market mutual funds are reported at 

amortized cost and the LAIF is reported at the value of its pool shares. 

 Investments.  The District’s investments are reported at fair value.  Realized and unrealized gains 

and losses are included in Interest and Other Income in the consolidated statements of revenues, 

expenses and changes in net assets.  Premiums and discounts on zero coupon bonds are amortized 

using the effective interest method.  Premium and discounts on other securities are amortized using 

the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method. 

 Unbilled Operating Revenues.  The District records an estimate for unbilled revenues earned from the 

dates its retail customers were last billed to the end of the month.  At December 31, 2004 and 2003, 

unbilled revenues were $59.9 million and $53.8 million, respectively. 

 Purchased Power Expenses.  A portion of the District’s power needs are provided through power 

purchase agreements.   Expenses from such agreements, along with associated transmission costs 

paid to other utilities, are charged to Purchased Power expense, on the consolidated statements of 

revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, in the period the power is received.  The costs, or 

credits, associated with energy swap agreements (gas and electricity) or other arrangements that 

affect the net cost of Purchased Power, are recognized in the period in which the underlying power 

delivery occurs.  Contract termination payments and adjustments to prior billings are included in 

Purchased Power expense once the payments or adjustments can be reasonably estimated. 

 Advanced Capacity Payments.  Some long-term agreements to purchase energy from other providers 

call for up-front payment.  Such costs are generally recorded as an asset and amortized over the 

length of the contract.  One advance capacity contract, with a fair value of $103.7 million at December 

31, 2004, is accounted for as a derivative financial instrument (see Note 9). 

 Credit and Market Risk.  The District enters into forward purchase and sales commitments for 

physical delivery of gas and electricity with utilities and power marketers.  The District is exposed to 

credit risk related to nonperformance by its wholesale counterparties under the terms of these 

contractual agreements.  In order to limit the risk of counterparty default, the District has a wholesale 

counterparty evaluation policy, which includes the assignment of internal credit ratings to the District’s 

counterparties based on counterparty and/or debt ratings, the requirement for credit enhancements for 

counterparties that do not meet an acceptable risk level, and the use of standardized agreements that 
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allow for the netting of positive and negative exposures associated with a single counterparty.  The 

District is also subject to similar requirements for many of its gas and electricity purchase agreements.   

 Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.  Accounts Receivable are recorded at the 

invoiced amount and do not bear interest except for accounts related to energy loans.  The District 

recognizes an estimate of uncollectible accounts for its receivables related to electric service, wholesale 

activities and conservation loans based upon its historical experience with collections, and current 

energy market conditions.  For large wholesale receivable balances, the District determines its bad 

debt reserves based on the specific credit issues for each account.  The District records bad debts for 

its estimated uncollectible accounts related to electric service and wholesale activities as a reduction to 

the related operating revenues in the consolidated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in 

net assets.  The District records bad debts for its estimated uncollectible accounts related to energy 

loans in Administrative, General and Customer expense in the consolidated statements of revenues, 

expenses and changes in net assets.   

 The summarized activity of the changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts during 2004 and 2003 

is presented below (thousand of dollars): 

      Balance at Write-offs Balance at 
      beginning of and   end of 
          Year  Additions  Recoveries       Year  
California ISO/PX: 
 December 31, 2004...........  $ 40,193 $       457 $ 16,722 $ 23,928   
 December 31, 2003...........   39,619  574  -0-  40,193 
Wholesale power and other: 
 December 31, 2004...........  $ 3,674 $      564 $ 343 $ 3,895   
 December 31, 2003...........   358  3,587  271  3,674 
Retail Customers: 
 December 31, 2004...........  $ 2,533 $      6,410 $ 6,060 $ 2,883   
 December 31, 2003...........   2,406  5,056  4,929  2,533 
Energy Efficiency Loans: 
 December 31, 2004...........  $ 1,248 $      1,164 $ 1,158 $ 1,254   
 December 31, 2003...........   1,786  674  1,212  1,248 
 

 Through December 31, 2003 the District’s allowance for doubtful accounts for its receivables related 

to wholesale power sales for transactions executed through the California Independent System 

Operator (ISO) and Power Exchange (PX) were reserved at 100% of the outstanding balances due to 

collectibility issues and disputes over amounts billed from October 2000 through June 2001.  In 2004, 

the District negotiated a reduced settlement of $5.5 million with the California ISO relating to $16.7 

million of disputed amounts.  District management believes collection of this amount is reasonably 

assured and, as a result, there is no allowance for this amount at December 31, 2004.  Write-offs and 

recoveries of $16.7 million in 2004 in the above table reflect the $5.5 settlement (recovery) and the 

associated $11.2 million write-off.   
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 Regulatory Deferrals. The Board has the authority to establish the level of rates charged for all 

District services.  As a regulated entity, the District’s financial statements are prepared in accordance 

with SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation”, which requires that the 

effects of the rate-making process be recorded in the financial statements.  Accordingly, certain 

expenses and credits, normally reflected in Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets as incurred, are 

recognized when included in rates and recovered from, or refunded to, customers and the District 

records various regulatory assets and credits to reflect rate-making actions of the Board.   

 Materials and Supplies.  Materials and supplies are stated at average cost, which approximates the 

first-in, first-out method. 

   Unamortized Debt Issuance Costs.  The costs incurred in connection with the issuance of debt 

obligations, principally underwriter's fees and legal costs, are recorded as Unamortized Debt Issuance 

Costs in the consolidated balance sheets and are amortized over the terms of the related obligations 

using the bonds outstanding method. 

 Compensated Absences.  The District accrues vacation leave and compensatory time when the 

employees earn the rights to the benefits.  The District does not record sick leave or other leave as a 

liability until it is taken by the employee, since there are no cash payments for sick leave or other 

leave made when employees terminate or retire.  At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the total estimated 

liability for vacation and other compensated absences was $20.1 million and $19.3 million, 

respectively. 

 Public Good.  Public Good expenses consist of non-capital expenditures for energy efficiency 

programs, renewable energy resources and technologies research. 

 Gains/Losses on Bond Refundings. Gains and losses resulting from bond refundings are included as a 

component of Long-Term Debt on the consolidated balance sheets and amortized as a component of 

Interest on Debt in the consolidated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets, over 

the shorter of the life of the refunded debt or the new debt using the bonds outstanding method. 

 Gains/Losses on Bond Defeasances.  Gains and losses resulting from bond defeasances that were not 

financed with the issuance of new debt are included as a component of Interest on Debt in the 

consolidated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. 

 Allowance for Funds Used During Construction.  The District c apitalizes, as an additional cost of 

Construction Work In Progress (CWIP), an Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC), 

which represents the cost of borrowed funds used for such purposes.  The amount capitalized is 

determined by a formula prescribed by FERC.  The AFUDC rates for 2004 and 2003 were 4.1 percent 

and 3.6 percent of eligible CWIP, respectively. 

 Derivative Financial Instruments (As Restated).  The District records derivative financial instruments 

(interest rate swap and gas price swap agreements, certain wholesale sales agreements, certain 

electricity purchase agreements and option agreements) at fair value on its consolidated balance 



  
 

25

sheets.  The District generally does not enter into agreements for trading purposes.  However, the 

District does not elect hedge accounting.  Fair market value is estimated by comparing contract prices 

to forward market prices quoted by third party market participants and/or provided in relevant 

industry publications.  The Board defers recognition of the unrealized gains or losses from such 

instruments for rate-making purposes. The District is exposed to risk of nonperformance if the 

counterparties default or if the swap agreements are terminated.  The District reports derivative 

financial instruments with remaining maturities of one year or less and the next twelve months portion 

of long-term contracts as current on the consolidated balance sheets.  

 Interest Rate Swap Agreements.  The District enters into interest rate swap agreements to modify 

the effective interest rates on outstanding debt.  Interest expense is reported net of the swap 

payments received or paid as a component of Interest on Debt in the consolidated statements of 

revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.   

 Gas and Electricity Price Swap and Option Agreements.  The District uses forward contracts to hedge 

the impact of market volatility on gas commodity prices for its gas fueled power plants and for energy 

prices on purchased power for the District’s retail load.  Net cash payments or receipts incurred under 

the price swap and option agreements are reported as a component of Production for fuel related 

contracts and Purchased Power for electricity contracts in the consolidated statements of revenues, 

expenses and changes in net assets over the periods of the agreements.   

 Precipitation Hedge Agreements.  The District enters into non-exchange traded precipation hedge 

agreements to hedge the increased cost of power caused by low precipitation years (Precipitation 

Agreements).  The District records the intrinsic value of the Precipitation Agreements on the 

consolidated balance sheets.  Settlement of the Precipitation Agreements is not performed until the 

end of the period covered (water year ended September 30).  The intrinsic value of a Precipitation 

Agreement is the difference between the expected results from a monthly allocation of the cumulative 

rainfall amounts, in a normal rainfall year, and the actual rainfall during the same period. 

 Insurance Programs.  The District records liabilities for unpaid claims at their present value when 

they are probable of occurrence and the amount can be reasonably estimated.  The District records a 

liability for unpaid claims associated with general, auto, workers’ compensation, and short-term and 

long-term disability, based upon estimates derived by the District’s claims administrator or District 

staff.  The liability comprises the present value of the claims outstanding, and includes an amount for 

claim-events incurred but not reported based upon the District’s experience.  

 Net Assets.  The District classifies its net assets into three components as follows: 

• Invested in capital assets, net of related debt – This component of net assets consists of capital 

assets, net of accumulated depreciation reduced by the outstanding debt balances, net of 

unamortized debt expenses.  
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• Restricted – This component consists of net assets with constraints placed on their use, either 

externally or internally. Constraints include those imposed by Debt Indentures (excluding 

amounts considered in net capital, above), grants or laws and regulations of other 

governments, or by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or by the 

Board. 

• Unrestricted – This component of net assets consists of net assets that do not meet the 

definition of “invested in capital, net of related debt” or “restricted.”  

 Contributions in Aid of Construction.  The District records CIAC from customer contributions, 

primarily relating to expansions to the District’s distribution facilitates, as Nonoperating Revenues in 

the consolidated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.  Contributions of capital 

are valued at estimated market cost.  For rate-making purposes, the District’s Board does not 

recognize such revenues when received; rather CIAC is included in revenues as such costs are 

amortized over the estimated useful lives of the related distribution facilities.     

 Grants.  The District receives grant proceeds from federal and state assisted programs for its 

advanced and renewable technologies, electric vehicle, and energy efficiency programs.  The District 

also periodically receives grant proceeds from federally assisted programs as partial reimbursements 

for costs it has incurred as a result of storm damages.  When applicable, these programs may be 

subject to financial and compliance audits pursuant to regulatory requirements.  The District considers 

the possibility of any material disallowances to be remote.  During 2004 and 2003, the District 

recognized grant proceeds of $2.5 million and $6.5 million, respectively, as a component of Interest 

and Other Income, in the consolidated statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets. 

 Recent Accounting Pronouncements.  In March 2003, GASB issued Statement of Governmental 

Accounting Standards (SGAS) No. 40, “Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures,” which updates the 

custodial credit risk disclosure requirements of SGAS No. 3 and establishes additional disclosure 

requirements addressing other common risks of deposits and investments.  This Statement is effective 

for the District beginning in 2005.  The District is currently assessing the financial statement impact of 

adopting the new Statement. 

 In June 2004, GASB issued SGAS No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 

Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions (OPEB)”, which establishes standards of accounting and 

financial reporting for OPEB expense and related OPEB liabilities or assets.  OPEB arises from an 

exchange of salaries and benefits for employee services rendered.  It refers to postemployment 

benefits other than pension benefits such as postemployment healthcare benefits.  This Statement is 

effective for the District beginning in 2007.  The District’s estimate of its OPEB obligation is 

approximately $321.1 million as of December 31, 2004. 

 Reclassifications. Certain amounts in the 2003 consolidated financial statements have been 

reclassified in order to conform with the 2004 presentation.   
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NOTE 3.  RESTATEMENT 

In 2004, the District identified five power purchase agreements, in effect at December 31, 2003, that 

are derivative financial instruments which were improperly identified as a normal purchases and, as 

such, were not included at fair value in the December 31, 2003 consolidated balance sheet, as required 

by FAS 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.  In addition, the District 

was netting the fair value of contracts by commodity group and presenting the fair values net on the 

consolidated balance sheet when the right of set off did not exist as defined in FIN 39 “Offsetting of 

Amounts Related to Certain Contracts”.  The restatement of the December 31, 2003 consolidated 

balance sheet corrects the treatment of these contracts to reflect them as derivative financial 

instruments at that are recorded at their fair values and presents the fair values of derivative assets 

and liabilities gross on the balance sheet when it is appropriate to do so.  The adjustment for these 

corrections resulted in an increase of, which totaled $35.7 million for derivative instrument assets and 

$170.5 million for derivative financial instrument liabilities at December 31, 2003.  The District’s Board 

defers the recognition of derivative financial instruments for rate-making purposes, and accordingly, 

regulatory assets and regulatory credits were restated by $87.5 and $47.3 million, respectively, at 

December 31, 2003.  The restatement does not impact the 2003 statement of revenues, expenses and 

changes in net assets. 

 Balances presented in the 2003 consolidated balance sheet are restated as follows: 
 
         2003   2003 
        As Previously   As  
         Reported   Restated  
         (thousands of dollars) 
         
Assets: 
Regulatory costs for future recovery - current ................................ $ 71,329 $ 76,790 
Derivative financial instruments - current......................................  3,448  24,731 
Total current assets .................................................................  723,386  750,130 
Regulatory costs for future recovery - noncurrent ...........................  219,200  301,310 
Derivative financial instruments - noncurrent.................................  106,597  120,998 
Total noncurrent assets and deferred charges ................................  404,257  500,768 
Total assets.............................................................................  3,637,485  3,760,740 
 
Liabilities: 
Derivative financial instruments - current...................................... $ 580 $ 30,304 
Regulatory credits – current .......................................................  7,912  5,044 
Total current liabilities and deferred credits ...................................  460,729  487,585 
Derivative financial instruments - noncurrent.................................  6,949  147,722 
Regulatory credits – noncurrent ..................................................  278,137  233,763 
Total current liabilities and deferred credits ...................................  599,591  695,990 
Total liabilities..........................................................................  3,419,030  3,542,285 
 
Total liabilities and net assets..................................................... $ 3,637,485 $ 3,760,740
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NOTE 4.  UTILITY PLANT 

 The summarized activity of the District’s utility plant during 2004 is presented below (thousands of 

dollars): 

      Balance  Transfers  Balance 
      December 31,  and  December 31, 
          2003  Additions  Deletions        2004  
 
Nondepreciable Utility Plant: 
 Land ...............................  $ 64,692 $     1,153  $ -0- $ 65,845   
 CWIP ..............................   425,490  357,929  (169,912)  613,507  
Total nondepreciable utility plant   490,182  359,082  (169,912)  679,352 
 
Depreciable Utility Plant: 
 Generation ......................   786,889  17,745  (872)  803,762   
 Transmission....................   173,906  13,805  (1,073)  186,638 
 Distribution......................   1,087,646  86,075  (4,483)  1,169,238 
 Investment in gas properties  136,975  -0-  -0-  136,975 
 General...........................   556,277  49,410  (22,236)  583,451  
     2,741,693  167,035  (28,664)  2,880,064  
Less: accumulated depreciation   
 and depletion ...................   (992,802)  (103,789)  30,960  (1,065,631) 
Total depreciable plant ...........   1,748,891  63,246  2,296  1,814,433 
 
 Total Utility Plant - net.......  $ 2,239,073 $ 422,328 $ (167,616) $ 2,493,785 
 
 
 The summarized activity of the District’s utility plant during 2003 is presented below (thousands of 

dollars): 

      Balance  Transfers  Balance 
      December 31,  and  December 31, 
          2002  Additions  Deletions        2003  
 
Nondepreciable Utility Plant: 
 Land ...............................  $ 63,970 $ 736 $ (14) $ 64,692   
 CWIP ..............................   285,843  283,134  (143,487)  425,490  
Total nondepreciable utility plant   349,813  283,870  (143,501)  490,182 
 
Depreciable Utility Plant: 
 Generation ......................   769,868  23,623  (6,602)  786,889   
 Transmission....................   155,105  19,139  (338)  173,906 
 Distribution......................   1,028,581  63,676  (4,611)  1,087,646 
 Investment in gas properties  -0-  136,975  -0-  136,975 
 General...........................   557,835  35,075  (36,633)  556,277  
     2,511,389  278,488  (48,184)  2,741,693  
Less: accumulated depreciation   
 and depletion ...................   (942,236)  (97,529)  46,963  (992,802) 
Total depreciable plant ...........   1,569,153  180,959  (1,221)  1,748,891 
 
 Total Utility Plant - net.......  $ 1,918,966 $ 464,829 $(144,722) $ 2,239,073 
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 In 2002, the District began active development of the Cosumnes Power Plant (CPP Project), a 500 

megawatts (MW) natural gas fueled generation facility located on the Rancho Seco site.  The CPP 

Project is expected to be operational in 2006 (see note 18 relating to construction contract issues).  

Included in CWIP at December 31, 2004 and 2003, are cumulative capitalized costs of $356.4 million 

and $184.7 million, respectively, relating to the CPP Project’s construction and development, including 

the related natural gas pipeline.  

  
 
NOTE 5.  INVESTMENT IN JOINT POWERS AGENCY 

 TANC.  The District and fourteen other California municipal utilities are members of TANC, a JPA.  

TANC, along with the other California municipal utilities, own and operate the California-Oregon 

Transmission Project (COTP), a 500-kilovolt transmission line between central California and southern 

Oregon.  The District is obligated to pay 27.1 percent of TANC’s COTP debt service and operations 

costs in exchange for ownership of 339 MW of TANC’s 1,269 MW transfer capability.  Additionally, the 

District has a 46 MW share of TANC’s 300 MW firm, bi-directional transmission over Pacific Gas and 

Electric’s (PG&E) system between PG&E’s Tesla and Midway substations.  The District recorded 

transmission expenses related to TANC of $10.7 million and $11.5 million in 2004 and 2003, 

respectively. 

 Summary financial information for TANC is presented below: 

 

           December 31,   
         2004   2003  
         (Unaudited)   (Unaudited)  
         (thousands of dollars) 
 
Total assets............................................................................. $ 473,754 $ 489,779 
 
Total liabilities.......................................................................... $ 473,391 $ 489,424 
Total net assets........................................................................  363  355 
 Total liabilities and net assets................................................... $ 473,754 $ 489,779 
 
Revenues, expenses and changes in net assets.............................. $ 5 $ 2 
 
 The long-term debt of TANC, which totals $407.7 million (unaudited) at December 31, 2004, is 

collateralized by a pledge and assignment of net revenues of TANC, supported by take-or-pay 

commitments of the District and other members.  Should other members default on their obligations to 

TANC, the District would be required to make additional payments to cover a portion of such defaulted 

payments, up to 25 percent of its current obligation of 27.1%. 
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NOTE 6.  COMPONENT UNITS 

 CVFA Carson Cogeneration Project. CVFA is a JPA formed by the District and the Sacramento 

Regional County Sanitation District.  CVFA operates the Carson Project, a 57 MW (net) natural gas-

fired cogeneration facility and a 43 MW (net) natural gas-fired simple cycle peaking plant, which is 

financed primarily by CVFA non-recourse revenue bonds. 

 SCA Procter & Gamble Cogeneration Project.  SCA is a JPA formed by the District and the 

Sacramento Municipal Utility District Financing Authority (SMUDFA).  SMUDFA is a JPA formed by the 

District and the Modesto Irrigation District.  SCA operates the Procter & Gamble Project, a 120 MW 

(net) natural gas-fired cogeneration facility and a 44 MW (net) natural gas-fired simple cycle peaking 

plant, which is financed primarily by SCA non-recourse revenue bonds. 

 SPA Campbell Soup Cogeneration Project.  SPA is a JPA formed by the District and SMUDFA.  SPA 

operates the Campbell Soup Project, a 160 MW (net) natural gas-fired cogeneration facility, which is 

financed primarily by SPA non-recourse revenue bonds. 

 Copies of CVFA’s, SCA’s, and SPA’s annual financial reports may be obtained from their Executive 

Office at 6201 S Street, P.O. Box 15930, Sacramento, California 95852. 

 

NOTE 7.  CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS  

 At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the District’s cash, cash equivalents and investments consist of the 

following:   

          December 31,   
         2004   2003  
         (thousands of dollars) 
                Description       
              
Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
 Investments: 
 LAIF .................................................................................. $  104,047 $ 292,204 
  United States (U.S.) government securities ..............................  79,055  102,066 
  Money market mutual funds ..................................................  58,682  52,340 
  Securities lending transactions ...............................................  66,427  65,486 
  Commercial paper................................................................   13,187   39,830 
   Total cash and cash equivalents...........................................  321,398  551,926 
Investments: 
 U.S. government securities ......................................................  217,184  126,066 
    Total cash, cash equivalents and investments ...................... $ 538,582 $ 677,992 

 

 At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the District reported its book overdraft of $2.7 million and $11.8 

million, respectively, as a component of Accounts Payable on the consolidated balance sheets. 
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The District’s cash, cash equivalents, investments and securities lending collateral are classified in 

the consolidated balance sheets as follows: 

          December 31,   
         2004   2003  
         (thousands of dollars) 
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments: 
 Revenue bond reserve, debt service and construction funds: 
  Revenue bond reserve fund ................................................... $ 82,671 $ 89,624 
  Debt service fund.................................................................  37,558  45,134 
  Component unit bond reserve and construction funds.................  59,564  68,495 
   Total revenue bond reserve, debt service and construction funds  179,793  203,253 
 Nuclear decommissioning trust fund ..........................................  87,968  91,346 
 Rate stabilization fund.............................................................  75,000   87,317 
 Securities lending collateral......................................................  66,427  65,486 
 Other restricted funds .............................................................  6,072  3,625 
 Unrestricted funds ..................................................................  123,322  226,965 
    Total cash, cash equivalents and investments ...................... $ 538,582 $ 677,992 
 
 Investment Risk Categories.  Investments held by the District are classified as to credit risk by 

categories and summarized as follows:  Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered 

or for which securities are held by the District or its agent in the District’s name and Category 2 

includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which securities are held by the counterparty’s 

trust department or agent in the District’s name.  At December 31, 2004 and 2003, investments in U.S 

government securities and Commercial Paper totaling $309.4 million and $268.0 million, respectively, 

are classified as Category 1 investments.   At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the District had no 

investments in corporate securities that would be classified as Category 2 investments.  All other 

investments, which comprise of LAIF, money market mutual funds and securities lending transactions 

are uncategorized. 

 Cash Equivalents and Investments.  Cash deposits held in the District’s name are fully insured by the 

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or are collateralized in accordance with the terms of the 

District’s indentures and applicable federal and state laws.  In accordance with state laws and the bond 

resolutions, the District is authorized to invest in the following types of instruments:  obligations which 

are unconditionally guaranteed by the U.S. or its agencies or instrumentalities; direct and general 

obligations of the State of California (State) or any local district within the State; bankers’ 

acceptances; certificates of deposit; repurchase agreements; reverse repurchase agreements; interest 

rate swap agreements; securities lending agreements; and corporate indebtedness, including 

commercial paper and medium-term notes with a maximum term of five years.  Investments in 

corporate indebtedness must be rated “A-1” or its equivalent for commercial paper, and “A” or 

equivalent for medium-term notes by a nationally recognized rating agency.  The component units’ 

bond indentures allow investing in various other securities in addition to the ones described above.  
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The District’s custodial agent maintains records showing the securities are solely owned by the District, 

or by one of its component units, where applicable.  A portion of these securities may be pledged as 

collateral or for other purposes.  The District’s investments in money market mutual funds are 

comprised of only non-derivative financial securities that are backed by federal or corporate issuers.   

 The LAIF is a component of the Pooled Money Investment Account Portfolio managed by the State 

Treasurer.  At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Pooled Money Investment Account Portfolio includes 

approximately 2.6 percent and 2.1 percent, respectively, in certain derivative-type products, which are 

in the form of structured notes and asset-backed securities.  

 Securities Lending Transactions.  The District enters into securities lending agreements for up to 20 

percent of its investment portfolio only with counterparties that are primary dealers of the Federal 

Reserve Bank of New York.  At December 31, 2004, the District had no credit risk exposure to 

borrowers because the amount the District owes the borrowers exceeds the amounts the borrowers 

owe the District.  The contract with the District’s custodial bank requires it to indemnify the District if 

the borrowers fail to return the securities (and the collateral is inadequate to replace the securities 

lent) or fail to pay the District for income distributions by the securities’ issuers while the securities 

were on loan. 

  

NOTE 8.  REGULATORY DEFERRALS 

 The District’s Board has taken various regulatory actions that result in differences between the 

recognition of revenues and expenses for rate-making purposes and their treatment under generally 

accepted accounting principles for non-regulated entities.  These actions result in regulatory assets and 

liabilities, which are summarized in the tables below.  Changes to these balances, and their inclusion in 

rates, occur only at the direction of the Board.  

 

Regulatory Assets 

 Decommissioning.  The District’s regulatory asset relating to the unfunded portion of its 

decommissioning liability is being collected in rates and through interest earnings on the Trust Fund, 

through 2008 when radiological decommissioning is expected to be complete.  Subsequently, nuclear 

fuel storage costs and non-radiological decommissioning costs are to be collected in rates commencing 

in 2009. 

 Wholesale Power Receivables.  The District’s regulatory asset relates to its wholesale receivables that 

were fully reserved as uncollectible in 2001.  These wholesale receivable reserves relate to amounts 

due from the ISO and PX totaling $23.9 million and $40.2 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, 

respectively.  The ultimate recovery of these amounts is dependent on numerous factors and cannot 

be determined at this time. This regulatory asset will be reversed concurrent with the reasonable 

certainty of collections or by inclusion in rates in future periods.  In connection with the tentative 
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settlement of one of its receivable balances due from the California ISO in 2004 (See note 2), the 

District reduced the related regulatory asset by $16.7 million.  Of this amount, $5.5 was recorded as 

an increase to net receivables (now determined to be collectable), and $11.2 million was recorded as a 

reduction to 2004 wholesale revenues. 

 TANC Operations Costs.  The District’s regulatory asset relating to deferred TANC costs comprises the 

difference between its cash payments made to TANC and its share of TANC’s accrual-based costs of 

operations.  This regulatory asset is being collected in rates over the life of TANC’s assets during the 

period that cash payments to TANC exceed TANC’s accrual-based costs. 

 U.S. Bureau of Reclamation.  In December 2004, the District established a regulatory asset to defer 

recognizing the expense related to the settlement with the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (Bureau) on a 

billing dispute.  The District will make increased payments in future rates to settle the dispute (See 

Note 17). This regulatory asset will be collected in rates for future water service over the twenty-five 

year period the District is committed to making the increased rate payments to the Bureau. 

 Enrichment Facility Decommissioning Assessment.  The District’s regulatory asset relating to 

obligations associated with the federal nuclear fuel enrichment program is being collected in rates, 

based on cash payments made, through 2008. 

 Derivative Financial Instruments.  The District’s regulatory asset relating to derivative financial 

instruments is intended to defer the net difference between the fair value of derivative instruments and 

their cost basis, if any.  The balance is charged or credited into rates as the related asset or liability is 

utilized. 

 Precipitation Hedges.  Settlements of Precipitation Agreements are included in rates in the year 

settled, and accordingly the intrinsic value of open precipitation hedges is deferred as regulatory assets 

or liabilities. 

 The District’s total regulatory costs for future recovery are presented below: 
 
          December 31,   
         2004   2003  
           (As Restated) 
         (thousands of dollars) 
Regulatory Costs for Future Recovery: 
  
 Decommissioning .................................................................. $ 233,345 $ 227,679 
 Wholesale power receivables ...................................................  23,928  40,193 
 TANC operations costs ............................................................  14,864  16,960 
 U.S. Bureau of Reclamation .....................................................   12,485  -0- 
 Enrichment facility decommissioning assessment ........................  4,651  5,697 
 Derivative financial instruments ...............................................  71,234      87,571 
 Precipitation hedges ...............................................................   1,702  -0- 
   Total regulatory costs.........................................................  362,209  378,100 
 Less: regulatory costs to be recovered within one year .................  (72,836)  (76,790) 
     Total regulatory costs for future recovery - net .................. $ 289,373 $ 301,310 
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Regulatory Liabilities 

 CIAC.  In 2004 and 2003, the District capitalized CIAC totaling $18.2 million and $20.9 million, 

respectively, in Plant in Service in the consolidated balance sheets and recorded $5.8 million and $5.2 

million, respectively, of depreciation expense in the consolidated statements of revenues, expenses 

and changes in net assets.  The District’s regulatory credit relating to CIAC is intended to offset the 

revenue and expense associated with this accounting treatment.  Thus, this regulatory credit is being 

amortized into rates over the depreciable lives of the related contributed distribution plant assets in 

order to offset the earnings effect of these nonexchange transactions.  

 Rate Stabilization.  The District’s regulatory credit relating to Rate Stabilization is intended to defer 

the need for future rate increases when costs exceed existing rates.  Each year, at the direction of the 

Board, amounts are either transferred into this fund (which reduces revenues) or amo unts are 

transferred out of this fund (which increases revenues).  For several years through 2003, the Board 

deferred all residual income or loss into this account, as part of its strategy to maintain break-even 

operations while building up the Rate Stabilization Fund.  In 2004, the Board ceased this practice and 

adopted a practice of authorizing Rate Stabilization Fund transfers on an event driven basis.  In 2004, 

the Board determined that $12.3 million should be withdrawn in connection with payments ma de to 

PG&E associated with the Scheduling Coordinator Services (SCS) Tariff issue as described in Note 17.  

 El Paso Settlement.  In December 2004, the District established a regulatory credit relating to the 

settlement of a class action lawsuit with El Paso Natural Gas (El Paso), which is comprised of the 

present value of the amount the District will collect from El Paso over the twenty year repayment term.  

This regulatory deferral will be credited to revenue as payments from El Paso are realized.   

 Public Good. The District’s regulatory credit relating to Public Good comprises the amounts collected 

in rates for specifically identified Public Good programs that have not been fully expended.  These 

regulatory deferrals are credited to revenue in the period when the expenditures on identified projects 

occur.  

 The District’s total regulatory credits for future revenue recognition are presented below: 

 

          December 31,   
         2004   2003  
           (As Restated) 
         (thousands of dollars)  
Regulatory Credits for Future Revenue Recognition: 
 CIAC ................................................................................... $ 163,197 $ 150,776 
 Rate stabilization ...................................................................  75,000  87,317 
 El Paso Settlement ................................................................  6,900  -0- 
 Public good ..........................................................................  895  714 
   Total regulatory credits for future revenue recognition .............  245,992  238,807 
 Less – regulatory credits to be recognized within one year.............  (7,495)  (5,044) 
    Total regulatory credits – net ............................................ $ 238,497 $ 233,763 
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NOTE 9.  DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

  The District enters into contracts for electricity and natural gas to meet the expected needs of its 

retail customers.  The District sells excess capacity during periods when it is not needed to meet its 

retail requirements.  The District’s energy risk management program uses various physical and 

financial contracts to hedge exposure to fluctuating commodity prices.  The District also enters into 

interest rate swap agreements to reduce interest rate risk or to enhance the relationship between the 

risk and return regarding the District’s assets or debt obligations.  During 2004 and 2003, the District 

executed numerous new gas related and power related purchase agreements, which are accounted as 

derivative financial instruments and are included in the table below. 

 The fair value of the District’s derivative financial instruments are as follows: 

          December 31,   
         2004   2003  
           (As Restated) 
         (thousands of dollars)  
      
Derivative Financial Instrument Assets: 
 Gas related agreements .......................................................... $ 41,371 $ 11,758 
 Electric related agreements......................................................  119,987  108,855 
 Treasury related agreements....................................................  21,922  25,116 
  Total derivative financial instruments ......................................  183,280  145,729 
 Less – derivative financial instruments maturing within one year ....  (32,309)  (24,731) 
   Total derivative financial instrument assets – net .................... $ 150,971 $ 120,998 
 
Derivative Financial Instrument Liabilities: 
 Gas related agreements .......................................................... $ 3,515 $ 2,264 
 Electric related agreements......................................................  173,010  146,214
 Treasury related agreements....................................................  27,315  29,548 
  Total derivative financial instruments ......................................  203,840  178,026 
 Less – derivative financial instruments maturing within one year ....  (48,317)  (30,304) 
   Total derivative financial instrument liabilities – net ................. $ 155,523 $ 147,722 
 

  

The Board has deferred recognition of the effects of reporting the fair value of derivative financial 

instruments for rate-making purposes, and in 2001, established a regulatory account to defer the 

accounting impact of these accounting adjustments (see Note 8).  
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NOTE 10.  LONG-TERM DEBT 

 The District’s total long-term debt is presented below: 

          December 31,   
         2004   2003  
         (thousands of dollars)  
Electric Revenue Bonds: 
 Electric revenue bonds, 2.5%-6.5%, 2005-2033.......................... $1,727,090  $ 1,638,760 
 Subordinated electric revenue bonds, 1.45%-8.0%, 2005-2028 .....      478,850   487,650 
   Total electric revenue bonds ................................................   2,205,940   2,126,410 
Component unit cogeneration project revenue bonds, 
    5.0%-7.0%, 2005-2022 ...................................................      295,625   310,525 
   Total long-term debt outstanding .........................................   2,501,565   2,436,935 
Bond premiums - net ................................................................        78,614   84,881 
Deferred losses on bond refundings - net ......................................   ( 106,689)   (118,861) 
   Total long-term debt ..........................................................   2,473,490   2,402,955 
Less:  amounts due within one year.............................................   (   67,165)   (44,245) 
    Total long-term debt - net ................................................ $2,406,325  $ 2,358,710 
 
 
 The summarized activity of the District’s long-term debt during 2004 is presented below (thousands 

of dollars): 

               Amounts  
      December 31,  Payments or December 31,  Due Within 
          2003  Additions Amortization       2004    One Year_      
Electric revenue bonds............... $ 1,638,760 $130,950  $  (42,620) $1,727,090  $  57,840 
Subordinate electric  
  revenue bonds ....................  487,650        -0-     (8,800)      478,850             425 
Component unit cogeneration 
  project revenue bonds ..........  310,525        -0-    (14,900)      295,625        8,900 
    Total ...............................  2,436,935   130,950     (66,320)   2,501,565      67,165 
Unamortized premiums – net ......  84,881    2,412       (8,679)        78,614  
Deferred losses on bond 
 refundings - net ......................  (118,861)   (  1,518)     13,690    ( 106,689)     
Total long-term debt ................. $ 2,402,955 $131,844   $  (61,309)  $2,473,490 
 

The summarized activity of the District’s long-term debt during 2003 is presented below (thousands of 

dollars): 

               Amounts  
      December 31,  Payments or December 31,  Due Within 
          2002  Additions Amortization       2003     One Year 
Electric revenue bonds............... $ 1,486,455 $ 812,445 $ (660,140) $ 1,638,760 $ 25,245 
Subordinate electric  
  revenue bonds ....................  384,125  111,900  (8,375)  487,650        8,400 
Component unit cogeneration 
  project revenue bonds ..........  332,590       -0-  (22,065)  310,525  10,600 
    Total ...............................  2,203,170  924,345  (690,580)  2,436,935  44,245 
Unamortized premiums – net ......  154  81,636  3,091  84,881   
Deferred losses on bond 
 refundings - net ......................  (94,674)  (33,972)  9,785  (118,861)     
Total long-term debt ................. $ 2,108,650 $ 972,009 $ (677,704) $ 2,402,955  
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 At December 31, 2004, scheduled annual principal maturities and interest are as follows (thousands 

of dollars):  

        Principal        Interest        Total  

  2005 ................................. $  67,165 $ 123,151 $ 190,316 
 2006 .................................    85,160    119,299    204,459
 2007 .................................    98,390    115,050    213,440 
  2008 .................................    88,225    110,407    198,632  
  2009 .................................    79,645    106,355    186,000  
  2010 – 2014 .......................  587,450    451,480              1,038,930  
  2015 – 2019 .......................  643,995    293,548    937,543  
  2020 – 2024 .......................  472,230    148,448    620,678  
  2025 – 2029 .......................  311,930      56,254    368,184  
  2030 – 2033 .......................       67,375        7,612      74,987 
 
  Total Requirements                 $ 2,501,565             $ 1,531,604      $ 4,033,169 
 

 Interest in the preceding table includes interest requirements for variable rate debt ranging from 2.4 

percent to 4.5 percent using the debt interest rate in effect at December 31, 2004 for each issue. 

 2004 Electric Revenue Bonds.  In May 2004, the District issued $130.9 million of 2004 Series T 

Electric Revenue Bonds at a premium of $2.4 million.   Proceeds from the 2004 Series T Bonds and 

$1.4 million of available District funds were used to refund $101.0 million of Commercial Paper Notes 

(Notes) and $16.9 million of previously issued revenue bonds through a legal defeasance, and 

accordingly, the liability for the defeased bonds has been removed from Long-term Debt in the 

consolidated balance sheets.  The refunding resulted in the recognition of a deferred accounting loss of 

$1.5 million, which is being amortized over the life of the refunding issue; and a current accounting 

loss of $0.5 million, which is included in Interest on Debt in the consolidated statements of revenues, 

expenses and changes in net assets.  The 2004 refunding reduced future aggregate debt service 

payments by $3.3 million and resulted in a total economic gain of $1.3 million, the difference between 

the present value of the old and new debt service payments.  Proceeds from the 2004 Series T Bonds 

were also used to fund $14.0 million of capital expenditures.  

 2003 Revenue Bonds Refundings and Defeasances.  In 2003, the District issued $924.4 million of 

Electric Revenue and Subordinated Electric Revenue Bonds at a premium of $81.6 million.   Proceeds 

from these bonds were used to refund $115.3 million of Notes and $600.3 million of previously issued 

revenue bonds.  The refundings resulted in the recognition of deferred accounting losses of $65.1 

million, which are being amortized over the lives of the refunding issues; and a current accounting loss 

of $2.0 million, which is included in Interest on Debt in the consolidated statements of revenues.  The 

2003 refundings reduced future aggregate debt service payments by $101.9 million and resulted in a 
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total economic gain of $71.7 million, the difference between the present values of the old and new 

debt service payments.   

  Interest Rate Swap Agreements.  The District has a fixed-to-variable interest rate swap agreement 

with a notional amount of $131.0 million, which is equivalent to the principal amount of the District’s 

1997 Series K Electric Revenue Bonds.  Under this swap agreement, the District pays a variable rate 

equivalent to the Bond Market Association (BMA Index) (1.99 percent at December 31, 2004) and 

receives fixed rate payments of 5.15 percent.  In connection with the swap agreement, the District has 

a put option agreement, also with a notional amount of $131.0 million which gives the counterparty 

the right to sell to the District, at par, either the 1997 Series K bonds, or a portfolio of securities 

sufficient to defease the 1997 Series K bonds.  The exercise of the option terminates the swap at no 

cost to the Distric t.  The combination of these financial transactions brings the District’s net cost of 

borrowing to the BMA Index less 8 basis points.  The term of both the swap and the put is equal to the 

maturity of the 1997 Series K bonds. 

 Additionally, the District has three variable-to-fixed interest rate swap agreements with a combined 

notional amount of $407.8 million for the purpose of fixing the effective interest rate associated with 

certain of its Subordinated Bonds.  Under these agreements, the District makes fixed payments of 

between 2.89 percent and 4.50 percent and receives variable payments from the counterparties of 

between 63 percent and 70 percent of the one-month London Interbank Offered Rate for U.S. dollar 

deposits (2.40 percent at December 31, 2004).  The swap agreements expire in 2010 ($27.2 million 

notional value), 2018 ($269.1 million) and 2028 ($111.5 million).   The notional values of all three 

swaps are amortized over the life of the respective swap agreements concurrently with scheduled 

principal payments.  The District can terminate all swap agreements at any time, with payment or 

receipt of the fair market value of the swaps as of the date of termination.   

 Subordinated Electric Revenue Bonds.  Payment of and interest on the Subordinated Electric Revenue 

Bonds is subordinate to the payment of the principal and interest on the District’s Electric Revenue 

Bonds. 

 Variable Rate Bonds.  The District’s variable rate bonds bear interest at daily, weekly and monthly 

rates, ranging from 1.45 percent to 1.60 percent at December 31, 2004.  The District can elect to 

change the interest rate period or fix the interest rate, with certain limitations.  Certain variable rate 

bondholders have the right to tender the bonds to the tender agent.  The District’s variable rate bonds 

cannot be put to the District by the bondholders.  Accordingly, the District has recorded such bonds as 

long-term debt, less amounts scheduled for redemption within one year. 

 Component Unit Cogeneration Bonds.  The component units of the District have each issued bonds to 

finance their respective cogeneration projects.  These bonds are limited-recourse to the District.  

Principal and interest associated with these bonds are paid solely from the component units’ revenues 

and receipts collected in connection with the operation of the cogeneration projects.  Most operating 
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revenues earned by the component units are collected from the District in connection with the sale of 

electricity to the District.  The ability of the component units to service the debt is dependent upon the 

successful operation of the respective cogeneration projects (see Note 6). 

 Callable Bonds.  The District has $24.6 million of fixed rate system revenue bonds that are currently 

callable and $921.3 million of bonds that become callable from 2006 through 2014.  These bonds can 

be called until maturity.  In addition, all $454.3 million of the District’s variable rate subordinated 

bonds are currently callable. 

 Collateral.  The principal and interest on the District’s bonds are payable exclusively from, and are 

collateralized by a pledge of, the net revenues of the electric system of the District.  Neither the credit 

nor the taxing power of the District is pledged to the payment of the bonds and the general fund of the 

District is not liable for the payment thereof. 

 Covenants. The District’s bond resolutions contain various covenants that include requirements to 

maintain minimum debt service coverage ratios, certain other financial ratios, stipulated minimum 

funding of revenue bond reserves, and various other requirements. 

 

 NOTE 11.  COMMERCIAL PAPER NOTES 

 The District issues Notes to finance or reimburse capital expenditures.  At December 31, 2004, there 

were no Notes outstanding and as of December 31, 2003 Notes principal totaled $51.0 million.  The 

effective interest rate for the Notes outstanding at December 31, 2003 was 0.98 percent and the 

average term was 37 days.  The District maintains a $173.0 million letter of credit to support the sale 

of these outstanding Notes and incurs an annual fee of 0.50 percent.   There has not been a term 

advance under the letter of credit agreement.  In January 2005, the District issued $50.0 million of 

Notes. 

 

NOTE 12.  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of 

financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate the value: 

 Investments.  The fair values of investments, including cash equivalents, are based upon quoted 

market prices. 

 Long-term Debt.  The fair value of Long-term Debt, which includes the short-term portion, was 

calculated by determining the value of each individual series using a standard bond pricing formula and 

market yields from representative yield curves.  The District’s electric revenue bonds, including 

subordinated bonds, were priced using the fair market curve for insured municipal revenue bonds, 

except the taxable Series F Bonds, which were priced using the taxable general obligation bond curve.  

A similar fair value calculation was performed for the component units’ bonds, except that all 

uninsured component unit debt was priced using the yield curve for “BBB” rated municipal power 
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bonds and insured component debt was calculated using the yield curve for “A” rated municipal power 

bonds.  All yield curves were obtained from Bloomberg L.P. 

 Interest Rate Swap and Put Agreements.  The fair values of interest rate swap and put agreements 

are based on quoted market prices. 

 Gas and Electricity Related Derivatives.  The fair values of gas and electricity price swap agreements 

and electricity option agreements are based on forward prices from established indexes for the 

applicable regions.  The fair values of electricity purchase agreements are based on forward prices 

from established indexes from applicable regions and discounted using established interest rate 

indexes.  Additionally, for electricity purchase contracts that include options and/or exchanges, the fair 

values of such contracts are based on models prepared by District staff that includes forecasted future 

usage and/or exchanges and electricity pricing based on price curves as described above for the 

periods covered by the agreements.  

 

 The estimated fair values of the District’s financial instruments are presented below: 

 

          December 31, 2004  
          Recorded Value   Fair Value  
         (thousands of dollars) 
 
Investments, including cash and cash equivalents .................... $ 583,582 $ 583,582 
Long-term debt ..................................................................   (2,473,490)   (2,683,913) 
Interest rate swap and put agreements ..................................      (5,393)  (5,393) 
Gas and electricity related derivatives ....................................     (15,167)  (15,167) 

 
         December 31, 2003  
         Recorded Value   Fair Value  
        (As Restated)  (As Restated) 
           (thousands of dollars) 
        
Investments, including cash and cash equivalents .................... $ 677,992 $ 677,992 
Long-term debt ..................................................................  (2,402,955)  (2,606,844) 
Interest rate swap and put agreements ..................................  (4,432)  (4,432) 
Gas and electricity related derivatives ....................................     (27,865)  (27,865) 

 

NOTE 13.  RANCHO SECO DECOMMISSIONING LIABILITY  

 Background.  The Rancho Seco decommissioning liability relates to the nuclear decommissioning of 

the former 913 MW nuclear power plant, which terminated commercial operations in 1989.  Nuclear 

decommissioning is the process of safely removing nuclear facilities from service and reducing residual 

radioactivity to a level that permits termination of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) license 

and release of the property for unrestricted use.  The NRC has approved the District’s decommissioning 

plan, which provides for removing low-level radioactive material beginning in 1997 and completing 
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active decommissioning in 2008.  The plant license is planned to  be terminated in phases. The license 

for the main areas of the Rancho Seco power plant site will be terminated in 2008 after removal of 

waste, most  of which will be sent to licensed disposal sites or licensed radioactive waste processors. 

The remaining waste will be stored on site for an unspecified period after 2008 pending availability of 

appropriate disposal sites.  The license for the storage facilities will be terminated after the waste is 

removed. 

 The Department of Energy (DOE), under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, is responsible for 

permanent disposal of spent nuclear fuel and high-level radioactive waste.  The District has a contract 

with the DOE for the removal and disposal of spent nuclear fuel and high-level (greater than class “C”: 

GTCC) radioactive waste.  However, the date when fuel and GTCC waste removal will be complete is 

uncertain.  The DOE recently announced that it would not meet the projected 2010 opening date for 

the Yucca Mountain waste site.  The rate at which DOE will remove fuel is also uncertain.  The District 

has constructed and separately licensed an on-site independent spent fuel storage facility (Storage 

Facility) for dry storage of the fuel in sealed canisters and completed movement of the fuel into the 

facility in 2002.  The District has applied for a license amendment to store the GTCC waste at the 

Storage Facility.  The Storage Facility will remain under the regulation of NRC until such time as it is 

decommissioned after the DOE removes the nuclear fuel and GTCC radioactive waste. 

 Asset Retirement Obligations.  Rancho Seco is one of the first large commercial nuclear power plants 

to be removed from service.  Due to the substantial technical, regulatory and legal issues in connection 

with its nuclear decommissioning, the District cannot predict with certainty how long various 

decommissioning processes will take nor the eventual cost of decommissioning.  These financial 

statements reflect the District’s current estimate of its obligation for the cost of decommissioning 

under the requirements of SFAS No. 143 based on studies completed in 2004 and 2003. The 2004 

study included an increase of $26.1 million, which related primarily to additional internal and 

outsourced staffing costs and other support costs related to spent fuel management from 2009 

through the date of removal of spent nuclear fuel. 

 Rancho Seco’s decommissioning liability is presented below (thousands of dollars): 

 
          December 31,   
         2004   2003  
 

Active decommissioning ............................................................ $ 217,341 $ 249,332 
Spent fuel management ............................................................  103,208  67,208 
 Total ARO ............................................................................. $ 320,549 $ 316,540 
Less: Current portion ...............................................................  41,500  39,081 
   Total Non-current portion of ARO ......................................... $ 279,049 $ 277,459 
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 The summarized activity of the Rancho Seco decommissioning liability during 2004 and 2003 are 

presented below (thousands of dollars): 

 

          December 31,   
         2004   2003  
 
ARO at beginning of year ........................................................... $ 316,540 $ 336,622 
Accretion  ...............................................................................  16,158  17,488 
Expenditures and annual adjustments .........................................  (38,221)      (37,570) 
Additional decommissioning liability from 2004 study .....................  26,072  -0- 
   Total ARO ........................................................................ $ 320,549 $ 316,540 
 

 The District contributed $27.0 million to the Trust Fund in 2004 and 2003, and plans the same 

contribution rate in 2005. 

 

NOTE 14.  PENSION PLANS 

 Defined Benefit Pension Plan.  The District participates in the California Public Employee’s Retirement 

System (PERS), an agent multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan.  PERS 

provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to 

plan members and beneficiaries.  PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 

participating public entities within the State.  Benefit provisions and all other requirements are 

established by State statute and District policies.  Copies of PERS’ annual financial report may be 

obtained from their Executive Office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814. 

 Funding Policy. Participants are required to contribute approximately 7.0 percent of their annual 

covered salary.  The District makes either the full or partial contributions required of District employees 

on their behalf and for their account.  The District is not currently required to contribute to the plan 

because of its current funding excess.  The contribution requirements of plan members and the District 

are established and may be amended by PERS. 

 Annual Pension Cost.  For 2004, 2003 and 2002, the District’s annual pension cost for PERS was $0 

since it was not required to make, and did not make, pension contributions.  The lack of required 

contributions was determined by PERS as part of the annual actuarial valuation based on the entry age 

normal actuarial cost method.  The actuarial assumptions included (a) a 7.75 percent investment rate 

of return (net of administrative expenses), (b) projected annual salary increases that vary by duration 

of service, and (c) 3.0 percent per year cost-of-living adjustments.  Both (a) and (b) also included an 

inflation component of 3.0 percent.  The actuarial value of PERS’ assets was determined using 

techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a 

four-year period (smoothed market value). 
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 Three-year trend information for PERS is presented below: 

  Annual Pension Percentage of 
  Fiscal Year   Cost (APC)  APC Contribution 
  
 6/30/02 $ -0- 100% 
 6/30/03  -0- 100 
 6/30/04 -0- 100 

 
   Required supplementary information for PERS is presented below for the three most recent years for 

which the District has available data (dollars in thousands): 

 
  Actuarial   Entry Age   Actuarial      Funded   Annual  Funding Excess 
  Valuation   Normal   Value of   Funding   Status   Covered  as a Percent 
  Date   Liability   Assets   Excess   Percent   Payroll   of Payroll 
 
  6/30/01  791,426  1,120,055  328,629  141.5   128,366  256.0  
  6/30/02  858,245  1,043,256  185,011  121.6   137,257  134.8 
  6/30/03  980,081  1,045,473    65,392  106.7   146,404  44.7 
 

 Other Plans.  The District provides its employees with two cash deferred compensation plans, one 

pursuant to Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 401(k) [401(k) Plan] and one pursuant to IRC 

Section 457 (457 Plan) (collectively, the Plans).  The Plans are contributory plans in which the District’s 

employees contribute the funds.   Each of the District’s eligible full-time or permanent part-time 

employees may participate in either or both Plans and amounts contributed are vested immediately.   

Such funds are held by a Trustee in trust for the employees upon retirement from District service and, 

accordingly, are not subject to the general claims of the District’s creditors.   The District is responsible 

for ensuring compliance with IRC requirements concerning the Plans and has the duty of reasonable 

care in the selection of investment alternatives, but neither the District nor its Board or officers have 

any liability for market variations in the Plans’ asset values.  District employees are responsible for 

determining how their funds are to be invested and pay all ongoing fees related to the Plans.  The 

Plans are currently not subject to discrimination testing or the requirements of the Employee 

Retirement Income Security Act of 1974.  The District employees participating in the Plans are allowed 

to contribute up to a portion of their gross income not to exceed the annual dollar limits prescribed by 

the IRC. 

 The District makes annual contributions to the 401(k) Plan on behalf of certain employees pursuant 

to a memorandum of understanding with one of its collective bargaining units.  The District does not 

match employee contributions nor make contributions on behalf of its employees to the 457 Plan.  

Participating employees and the District made contributions into the Plans totaling $13.9 million and 

$0.3 million in 2004, respectively, and $12.1 million and $0.3 million in 2003, respectively. 
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NOTE 15.  OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

 The District provides post-employment health care benefits, in accordance with District policy and 

negotiated agreements with employee representation groups, to all employees who retire from the 

District, and their dependents, on or after attaining age 50 with at least 5 years of service.  The 

District also provides post-employment health care benefits to covered employees who are eligible for 

disability retirement.  The District contributes the full cost of coverage for employees hired before 

January 1, 1991, and a portion of the cost based on credited years of service for employees hired after 

January 1, 1991.  The District also contributes a portion of the costs of coverage for these employees’ 

dependents.  Currently, 2,560 post-employment participants, including retirees, spouses of retirees, 

surviving spouses, and eligible dependents, participate in the District’s health care benefits program.   

  The post-employment health care benefits are unfunded.  The District records post-employment 

health care benefit expenses on a pay-as-you-go basis.  During 2004 and 2003, post-employment 

health care benefit expenditures were $9.5 million and $7.9 million, respectively.  At December 31, 

2004 and 2003, the District estimates that the actuaria lly determined accumulated post-employment 

benefit obligation was approximately $321.1 million and $394.6 million, respectively.  The significant 

decrease in this estimate in 2004 was caused primarily by decreased starting claims cost assumptions 

based on the most recent 2005 renewals related to Medicare Advantage plans, an increase in the 

discount rate (from 6.25 percent to 7.1 percent) due to a change from FASB reporting to GASB 

reporting, and an increase in the estimated value of additional governmental subsidies.  The health 

care inflation rate assumption used to estimate the net present value of the post-employment benefit 

obligation for 2004 ranged between 5.0 percent and 13.0 percent compared to a range of 5.0 percent 

to 15.0 percent used in the 2003 study for various elements of the health care obligations. The 

decrease reflects most recent experience and expectations.  The effect of a one percent change in 

these assumed health care cost trends would increase or decrease the District’s total benefit obligation 

by approximately $48.6 million or $39.7 million, respectively.  

 

NOTE 16.  INSURANCE PROGRAMS AND CLAIMS 

 The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of and destruction to assets, 

errors and omissions, and natural disasters.  In addition, the District is exposed to risks of loss due to 

injuries to, and illnesses of, its employees.  The District carries commercial insurance coverage to 

cover most claims in excess of specific dollar thresholds, which range from $0.2 million to $1.0 million 

per claim with total excess liability insurance coverage for most claims of $100.0 million.   District 

property insurance coverage is based on the replacement value of the asset.  There have been no 

significant reductions in insurance coverage in 2004.  In 2004 and 2003, the insurance policies in 

effect have adequately covered all settlements of the claims against the District.  The claims liability is 
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included as a component of Self Insurance, Deferred Credits and Other in the consolidated balance 

sheets. 

   The District’s total claims liability at December 31, 2004 and 2003 is presented below:  

 
          2004   2003  
          (thousands of dollars) 
 
Workers’ compensation claims .................................................... $ 6,429 $ 5,285 
General and auto claims ............................................................  3,069  3,055 
Short- and long-term disability claims ..........................................  2,501  2,233 
 Claims liability ....................................................................... $ 11,999 $ 10,573 
 
Changes in the District’s total claims liability during 2004 and 2003 is presented below: 
 
          2004   2003  
          (thousands of dollars) 
 
Claims liability, beginning of year ................................................ $ 10,573 $  7,123 
Add:  Provisions for claims .........................................................  5,851  7,248 
Less:  payments on claims .........................................................  (4,425)  (3,798) 
 Claims liability, end of year...................................................... $ 11,999 $ 10,573 
 

NOTE 17.  COMMITMENTS  

 Electric Power Purchase Agreements.  The District has numerous power purchase agreements with 

other power producers to purchase capacity and associated energy to supply a portion of its load 

requirements.  The District has minimum take-or-pay commitments for energy on most contracts.  

Certain contracts allow for the District to exchange energy, primarily in the summer months, when the 

District most needs the energy and to provide energy during the winter months, or other subsequent 

periods. 

  At December 31, 2004, the approximate minimum obligations for these contracts over the next five 

years are as follows:   

         Amount  

       Year ending: (thousands of dollars) 

        2005.......................................... $ 431,907  
        2006..........................................   318,817  
        2007..........................................   188,603  
        2008..........................................   149,546  
        2009..........................................   150,949  
 

 Contractual Commitments beyond 2009.  Several of the District’s purchase power contracts extend 

beyond the five-year summary presented above.  These contracts expire between 2010 and 2024 and 

provide for power under various terms and conditions.  The District estimates its annual minimum 

commitments under these contracts range between $152.6 million in 2010 and $49.6 million in 2024.  
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The District’s largest purchase power source is the Western Area Power Administration contract 

(Western), whereby the District can purchase up to 360 MW of capacity at cost-based rates, depending 

on the amount of energy available from Western in any given year.  The Western contract expires in 

2024. 

 Gas Supply Agreements.  The District has numerous long-term natural gas supply agreements with 

Canadian and U.S. companies to supply a portion of the consumption needs of the District’s natural 

gas fired cogeneration power plants, which expire through 2008.   

 Gas Transport Capacity Agreements.  The District has numerous long-term gas transport capacity 

agreements with Canadian and U.S. companies to transport natural gas to the District’s natural gas 

fired cogeneration power plants from the supply basins in Alberta to the California-Oregon border and 

from supply basins in the southwest and Rocky Mountains to the Southern California border.   These 

gas transport capacity agreements provide for the delivery of gas into District owned pipeline capacity 

within California.  The gas transport capacity agreements provide the District with 32,000 decatherms 

per day (Dth/d) of natural gas pipeline capacity to the Canadian Basins through 2023 and 40,000 

Dth/d to the Southwest or Rocky Mountain Basins through at least 2018. 

 Gas Storage Agreements.  The District also has an agreement for the storage of up to 1.5 million Dth 

of natural gas at a regional facility.  The gas storage agreement expires in 2009. 

 At December 31, 2004, the approximate minimum obligations for these natural gas related contracts 

over the next five years are as follows:  

         Amount  

  Year ending: (thousands of dollars)  

        2005.......................................... $ 98,000  
        2006..........................................    128,050  
        2007..........................................    122,563  
        2008..........................................    36,993  
        2009..........................................    6,302  
 

 Contractual Commitments beyond 2009.  Several of the District’s gas transport and gas storage 

contracts extend beyond the five-year summary presented above.  These contracts expire between 

2009 and 2023 and provide for transportation and storage under various terms and conditions.  The 

District estimates its annual minimum commitments under these contracts to be $5.8 million from 

2010 through 2023.   

 Gas Price Swap Agreements.  The District has entered into numerous variable to fixed rate swaps 

with notional amounts totaling 79,545,000 million British Thermal Units (mmbtu) for the purpose of 

fixing the rate on the District’s natural gas purchases for its gas fueled power plants and gas indexed 

electric contracts.  These gas price swap agreements result in the District paying fixed rates ranging 
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from $3.60 to $7.47 per mmbtu. The swap agreeme nts expire periodically from March 2005 through 

2010. 

 Capital Expenditures.  The District’s 2005 budget for capital expenditures (excluding AFUDC) totals 

$276.0 million, of which approximately $165.3 million is for power supply projects (including $52.1 

million for the Solano Wind Project and $46.0 million related to the construction of the 500 MW CPP 

Project), $66.8 million is for distribution projects and $43.9 million is for other capital projects.   

 

NOTE 18.  CLAIMS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Water Service Contract Billing Dispute.  The District entered into a 40-

year water service contract with the Bureau, which expires in 2012, for the delivery of up to 75,000 

acre-feet of water per year to originally meet the District’s needs at Rancho Seco.  This amount 

includes 60,000 acre-feet of municipal and industrial (M&I) water from the Central Valley Project 

(CVP).  Over time, Bureau revenues have been insufficient to cover actual CVP operations and 

maintenance (O&M) costs; contractor payments have been insufficient to cover amortization of their 

respective shares of CVP capital costs and, in the case of M&I contractors, have been insufficient to 

cover interest on unpaid capital.  Although the District’s contract contains a specific rate me thodology, 

the Bureau maintains that the District and other M&I contractors are running substantial O&M deficits 

which, by the Bureau’s definition, includes as O&M costs both unpaid interest on capital and interest on 

the O&M deficit.  The Bureau also claims interest has compounded on the O&M deficits.  

 In 2003 and 2004, the District worked with several M&I contractors, with similar contracts and 

significant deficits claimed by the Bureau, to resolve this matter with the Bureau.  The District, in 

concert with the M&I contractors, filed their complaint against the Bureau in March 2003 in the U.S. 

District Court.  Under the guidance of a federal magistrate, negotiations were held and a proposed 

settlement was reached.  

 In general, the settlement reduces each contractor’s obligation based on a combination of lower 

interest rates and simple interest; and the contractors commit to repayment of under-recovered capital 

and O&M costs.  The contractors can either pay off the obligation or retire it in rates.  The District 

estimates that its obligation under this settlement is $12.5 million as of December 2004.  In December 

2004 the Board approved the settlement and deferred the $12.5 million obligation as a Regulatory 

item (See Note 7) to be recovered in future rates as the obligation is repaid to the Bureau.  This 

amount is included in Due to U.S. Bureau of Reclamation in the balance sheet at December 31, 2004. 

Prior to completing the settlement, the Department of the Interior must give final approval so the 

Departme nt of Justice can execute the settlement documents and obtain approval by the federal court.  

Management believes that such approvals are likely to occur.   

 California Energy Market Refund Dispute.  In 2001, FERC issued an order establishing evidentiary 

hearings for the purpose of determining the amount of refunds, if any, due to customers of the 
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California ISO and PX spot markets from market participants selling into those markets for the period 

October 2, 2000 through June 20, 2001.  During this time period, the District was both a seller and a 

buyer in the California spot markets.  The Administrative Law Judge (ALJ) assigned to the proceedings 

adopted hearing procedures for a three-phase hearing.  Phase 1 of the hearing, held in March 2002, 

addressed the calculation of the price to be applied to sales into the California ISO and PX market 

retroactively.  Phases 2 and 3 addressed the calculation of refunds and identification of the amount 

currently owed to each supplier (with separate quantities due from each entity) by the California ISO, 

the investor owned utilities, and the State.  Hearings on Phases 2 and 3 concluded in August 2002.  In 

December 2002, the ALJ issued his Certification of Proposed Findings (Findings) for all three phases.  

In March 2003, FERC issued an Order (March Order) accepting most of the Findings and adjusting the 

formula used to calculate the mitigated market-clearing price (MMCP) to be used in retroactively 

resettling the markets during the refund period.  In its March Order, FERC noted that any future FERC 

findings of energy market manipulation that results from its ongoing review of additional evidence filed 

would neither result in a resetting of the refund effective date for this proceeding, nor impact the just 

and reasonable MMCP developed for the refund period. 

 In April 2003, the District filed a request for rehearing of FERC’s March Order and in October 2003, 

FERC issued an Order on Rehearing, where in relevant part (1) rejected the District’s request for 

rehearing regarding the District’s $4.1 million sleeve transaction, (2) rejected the District’s request for 

rehearing regarding adjustments made by the California PX, (3) declined to address the issue of 

FERC’s jurisdiction over municipal sellers and (4) determined that individual sellers, and not the 

California PX, should be subject to refund liability and refunds should be paid on a pro rata basis.  The 

Order on Rehearing requires the California ISO and PX to submit compliance filings containing the 

results of their revised market reruns.  Currently, the California ISO estimates that it will complete and 

file its revised market rerun with FERC in the summer of 2005.  The District has filed a Petition for 

Review of the Order on Rehearing with the Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, for the purposes of 

appealing the decision regarding the District’s $4.1 million sleeve transaction.  In November 2004, the 

Ninth Circuit Court issued an order severing the Petitions for Review of the jurisdictional issues and  

other transaction issues (which includes the District’s sleeve transaction).  The Ninth Circuit Court has 

scheduled oral arguments in April 2005 to consider the transaction issues (including the District’s 

sleeve transaction); and the District anticipates a dec ision will be issued in the summer of 2005. Under 

the latest MMCP formula announced by FERC, the District estimated that its potential refund liability 

could be as high as $12.0 million.  Throughout the process, the District has vigorously challenged 

FERC’s jurisdiction over public power in these proceedings and believes it is likely to prevail in this 

matter; thus, removing any potential liability.  If the District is found to be subject to FERC’s authority 

in this matter, the District’s liability would likely be partially offset by refunds it would eventually 

realize as a buyer in the California ISO and PX spot markets.   However, since District management 
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believes it is unlikely that it will be found to be subject to the jurisdiction of FERC’s refund process, it 

has not accrued any liability in this matter.   

 Scheduling Coordinator Services Tariff Dispute.  In January 2000, PG&E filed its proposed SCS Tariff 

with FERC.  The proposed SCS Tariff is designed to charge the District and other existing wholesale 

contract customers for the various scheduling services that PG&E provides.  PG&E claims that such 

services were new services that were due to the advent of industry restructuring in California and the 

California ISO.  The District and others believe that their existing contracts require PG&E to provide 

such services under the terms of their existing contracts.  Accordingly, the District and other utilities 

affected by the proposed SCS Tariff filing are rigorously opposing the proposed tariff action and have 

participated in numerous FERC proceedings in this regard.  Although PG&E’s tariff filing was made in 

2000, PG&E is seeking to have the proposed SCS Tariff charges apply retroactively from April 1998 

when the operations of the California ISO commenced and PG&E began incurring the ISO-related costs 

it is attempting to recover.  In June 2002, the District commenced operations as a separate control 

area and, therefore, is not subject to the proposed SCS Tariff as of that date. 

 In January 2000, FERC accepted for filing PG&E’s proposed SCS Tariff, suspended the filing for five 

months, and set the matter for hearing.  In August 2003, the ALJ issued an Order Phasing Proceeding 

bifurcating the proceeding into two phases.  In May 2004, the ALJ issued an initial decision in Phase 1 

of the SCS Tariff Proceeding, in which the ALJ found extraordinary circumstances sufficient to grant 

waiver of the prior notice requirement for a March 31, 1998 effective date, thereby allowing PG&E to 

recover SCS Tariff charges retroactive to the effective date; and determined that PG&E provides a new 

service under the SCS Tariff.  In October 2004, FERC issued its Phase 1 Opinion in which it found 

PG&E's SCS Tariff to be a new service, but reversed the ALJ’s finding that extraordinary circumstances 

permitted waiver of the prior notice requirement.  Accordingly, the FERC refused to allow PG&E to 

recover SCS Tariff charges retroactively from April 1998 through December 1999.  The District filed a 

request for rehearing of the Phase 1 Opinion with respect to the new service issue in November 2004.  

FERC issued a tolling order in December 2004 and has not acted on any of the parties’ requests for 

rehearing. The Phase 2 proceedings addressing cost allocation are underway with hearings scheduled 

to begin in May 2005.   

 In June 2004, PG&E issued the District an invoice in the amount of $19.2 million, which the District 

paid in full.  While the District believes it will ultimately prevail in its arguments that PG&E improperly 

collected the SCS Tariff charges from the District and the District is entitled to a refund from PG&E of 

any amounts paid under the SCS Tariff, it recorded $16.4 million of this payment to expense in 2004; 

the amount is included in Purchased Power expense.  At a minimum, District management believes 

that the FERC’s October 2004 Order will stand which would result in the District receiving a refund 

from PG&E of $2.8 million plus interest for the retroactive charges that PG&E assessed the District.  

Accordingly, a receivable of $2.8 has been recorded at December 31, 2004.   
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 The District’s potential liability under the SCS Tariff is also potentially impacted by the settlement 

reruns that the California ISO is currently undertaking in the California refund case discussed above.  

The District will continue to vigorously contest any charges associated with the SCS Tariff at the FERC. 

 Replacement Reserves Dispute.  In August 2003, PG&E issued invoices totaling $2.2 million for 

replacement reserve charges purportedly incurred by PG&E for energy scheduled through its Rancho 

Seco intertie point from July 2000 through June 2002.  In September 2003, the District provided PG&E 

notice of dispute of the invoices due to the fact that the billing was inconsistent with the Restated 

Interim Agreement, the primary agreement between the parties governing such transactions and, 

therefore, there should never have been any Replacement Reserve charges incurred in connection with 

the power deliveries at issue.  PG&E functioned as the Scheduling Coordinator on the District’s behalf 

for transactions with the California ISO at this intertie point until June 2002, when the District became 

its own control area.  These Replacement Reserve charges purportedly relate to power purchased by 

the California ISO to cover deviations between actual load and forecasted load.  The District believes  

that, even if the charges were appropriate, PG&E’s delay in billing within a reasonable timeframe 

compromised the District’s ability to modify its operations or scheduling procedures to eliminate or 

mitigate the charges.  Further, it is unclear whether PG&E has attempted to recover for these 

Replacement Reserve charges twice, once under the proposed SCS Tariff described above, and once 

through the Restated Interim Agreement.  

  Since October 2003 the parties have entered into a series of tolling agreements that hold this 

dispute in abeyance until the SCS Tariff Dispute described above is resolved.   

 District management believes that it is likely that it will not be found liable for any charges in this 

matter, and that in the event that a portion of these charges are ultimately upheld, any payment 

would be offset against the SCS liability described above for which the District has recorded an 

expense of $16.4 million in 2004.    

 COTP II Arbitration.  The California ISO filed to pass through charges on transactions involving the 

COTP, the District and Western control area.  The California ISO is seeking to pass through $9.0 million 

in new charges to PG&E as the COTP's and Western’s control areas proxy scheduling coordinator.  

These charges include emissions costs, start-up costs, and minimum load costs.  PG&E disputes the 

California ISO's authority to impose any charges on it as the Scheduling Coordinator for COTP and filed 

for arbitration in July 2004.  The District filed its intervention in the arbitration in July 2004.  The 

California ISO and Southern California Edison Company (Edison) filed motions for summary disposition 

in November 2004.  The District, PG&E, and other aligned parties filed a joint reply to the California 

ISO’s and Edison’s motion for summary disposition in January 2005.  Oral arguments on the California 

ISO’s and Edison’s summary disposition motions are being held in February 2005.   

 The District believes that the California ISO will not prevail in its attempts to pass charges through 

to the COTP and the District and the Western control area.  The District believes that previous COTP 
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arbitration and subsequent FERC orders confirmed that such a pass through was in violation of the 

California ISO Tariff.    Should the California ISO ultimately prevail, the District estimates that its share 

of the $9.0 million that the California ISO seeks to charge may be as much as $3.0 million. The District 

believes that it will prevail in this matter and, therefore, no liability has been recorded at December 31, 

2004. 

 Fru-Con Construction Corporation Construction Matters.     In August 2003, the District entered into 

a contract with Fru-Con Construction Corporation (Fru-Con) to construct the District’s 500 MW CPP 

Project.  Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America (Travelers) is obligated, under a 

Performance Bond, to guarantee Fru-Con’s performance under the contract.  The original construction 

schedule for the CPP Project called for commercial operation in September 2005.  As of mid-February 

2005, the CPP Project is about 65 percent complete and the District estimates that the CPP Project is 

four to six months behind schedule.  

  Though Fru-Con has previously made claims for comparably smaller amounts that have been 

resolved through negotiation; in October 2004, Fru-Con asserted additional claims totaling $26.0 

million.  Beginning in October 2004 and continuing until early February 2005, the District and Fru-Con 

participated in negotiations to resolve disputes over both cost and delays in the CPP Project schedule.  

The parties were unable to resolve the disputes to the satisfaction of the District and on February 11, 

2005, the District terminated its contract with Fru-Con on the basis of breach of contract by Fru-Con.   

On February 15, 2005 the District received notice from Fru-Con that Fru-Con claims the contract 

was wrongfully terminated. On February 28, 2005, the District filed suit in the Sacramento County 

Superior Court against Fru-Con and one of its sub-contractors alleging breach of contract.  The District 

is currently engaged in negotiations with existing subcontractors and other potential construction 

vendors to execute new construction contracts and resume project construction activities.   In the 

event the cost of completing the CPP Project exceeds the amount of the Fru-Con contract, the District 

expects to seek recovery of such amounts from Fru-Con and its surety, Travelers.   

The District does not believe that this jeopardizes the CPP Project or that the District will incur 

material losses as a result of this matter. 

Other Construction Matters.  The District contracts with various other firms to design and construct 

facilities for the District.  Currently, the District is party to various claims, legal actions and complaints 

on some of these construction projects.  District management believes that it will be successful in 

refuting these allegations, and estimates that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a 

material adverse effect on the District’s financial position.  Accordingly, no liability has been recorded 

at December 31, 2004.   

  Environmental Matters.  The District is one of many potentially responsible parties that have been 

named in a number of actions relating to environmental claims and/or complaints.  Due to the nature 

of these claims, legal actions or complaints, the District is unable to predict the range of costs for 
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resolution of these actions and intends to take all actions necessary to defend its position.  Some of 

these matters name the District along with other electric utilities as potentially responsible parties.  

The District has estimated its exposure to such costs based on its proportionate share of the potential 

claim and recorded its share as a liability; in most instances this is a relatively small percentage.  

However, should other named responsible parties become insolvent and unable to pay their share of 

the claims, the District’s share of these contingent liabilities would increase and could be material.  

District management does not believe this will occur, and accordingly, management believes that the 

outcome of these environmental claims will not have a material adverse impact on the District’s 

financial position or results of operations.  

 Other Matters.  In the normal operation of business, the District is party to various claims, legal 

actions and complaints.  Management and the District’s legal counsel believe that there are no other 

material loss contingencies that would have a material adverse impact on the District’s financial 

position or results of operations.  

 

NOTE 19.  SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

 A reconciliation of the consolidated statements of cash flows operating activities to operating income 

is as follows: 

       Year Ended December 31,   
         2004   2003__ 
        (thousands of dollars) 
 
Operating income ..........................................................  $ 167,749 $ 89,870 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net  
 cash provided by  operating activities: 
  Depreciation ............................................................   98,614  92,578 
  Depletion ................................................................   5,265  4,941 
  Regulatory deferrals collected in rates, including  
   decommissioning ....................................................   30,306  76,011 
  Amortization of advance capacity.................................   4,711  4,711 
  Revenue (recognized from) deferred to regulatory  
   credits..................................................................   (12,317)  56,069 
  Federal and State grants revenue ...............................   3,727  6,212 
  Interest income from energy efficiency loans .................   2,102  15,989 
  Other ....................................................................   945  2,406 
  Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
      Customer and wholesale receivables ...................   7,003  (8,502) 
      Other assets...................................................   6,764  (14,370) 
      Payables and accruals ......................................   10,167  (2,481) 
      Decommissioning ............................................   (32,830)  (26,739) 
 
Net cash provided by operating activities ...........................  $ 292,206 $ 296,694 
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The supplemental disclosure of noncash financing and investing activities is as follows: 

 
       Year Ended December 31,   
         2004   2003___      
              (As Restated) 
       (thousands of dollars) 
 
  Loss on defeasance of debt.........................................  $ (548) $ (3,032) 
  Amortization of debt related costs................................   5,351   8,711 
  Unrealized holding loss ..............................................   (1,868)  (2,548) 
  Change in valuation of derivative financial instruments....   11,737   (125,420) 
  Assets contributed in aid of construction .......................   4,975  5,867 
  Allowances for funds used during construction ...............   15,370  7,628 
  Construction costs included in accounts payable .............   40,868  49,801 
  Increase in decommissioning liability relating to change 
   in accounting principle .............................................   -0-  20,245 
 


